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FEES 2021-2022

Member category		       Annual fee
Active Senior			   $90
Active Reserve			   $90
Long Service			   $90
Past Active				    $90
Distinguished Service		  $45
Outstanding Service			  $45
Student				    $60
Active Junior and Cadet		  $60
General				    $90
Nipper				    $100
Family (3-4)				   $250
Family (5+)				    $310

Club Office Bearers 2021 -2022
PATRONS
James Griffin MP, Jean Hay AM, David Hay,  
Des McAteer

DIRECTORS
President Christine Gibbs Stewart

Deputy President Jack Sutherland

Secretary Frank Traugott

Treasurer (until December 2021) 
George Van Dyck 
Assistant Shannon Job 

Treasurer (From December 2021) 
Shannon Job

Club Captain Jack Watt 
Assistant Kyra Jenkins

Chief Instructor Dan Hillier
Assistant David Guthrie

Surf Sports Sarah Lally
Assistant Deb Foote 
Assistant Ally Stirling

Marketing David Cowell
Assistant Freya O’Neill

Junior Activities Bernie Burrows
Assistant Hillary Burrows
Assistant Simon Herfort

Youth Jodie Frazer
Assistant Brian Mariotti

General Activities Claire Oxlade
Assistant Olivia Pennie

OFFICERS, PANELS AND COMMITTEES
Member Protection Information Officer 
Janice Faaolatane

Executive Officer 
Paul Mathew

Public Officer 
Christine Gibbs Stewart

Honorary Auditor 
Trevor Lane 

Honorary Legal Advisor 
Vacant

Honorary Trustees
Keith Crampton, Paul Day, Arthur McCarroll

Life Membership & Honours Panel  
Shannon Job, Paul Day, Ron Morton, Arthur 
McCarroll

Judiciary Panel
Adam Traugott, Keith Abraham, Gordon Lang

Rules Panel 
Adam Traugott, Gordon Lang,  
Damian O’Shannassy

Future Fund Committee
Shannon Job, Paul Day, Tim Platt,  
Bernie Burrows

Club Historian  Simon Fry

Administration Manager
Cath Hillier

LIFE MEMBERS
K Abraham 2016
WH Allison 1922*
W Anderson 1952*
JF Buckley 1955*
BW Burrows 1996
A Carter 1936*
K Crampton 1986
J Colwell 2012
FH Dargan 1930*
PA Day 1975
R Donaldson 2021
LA Ellison 1926*
HC ‘Rastus’ Evans 1932*
WC Farran 1921*
AF Fitzgerald MBE 1958*
S Fry 2011
R Geary 1950*
S Grose 2008
TG Harland 1965*
NW Higham 1957*
LV Hind 1920*
P Hull 1998
T Lane 2018
Col. DH Love 1919*
AJ McCarroll 1983
DJ McGrath 1948*
P Mathew 2011
OGH Merrett 1913*
RC Middleton 1922*
GA Millar 1953*
EG Morgan 1951*

GH Morgan 1941*
ED Morton 1928*
R Morton 2013
DA O’Shannassy 2001
GB O’Sullivan 2003
AH Own 1938*
CK Paton 1947*
CD Patterson 1911*
NR Purcell 1971*
JB Pym 1915*
DH Richardson 1945*
DK Robinson 1957*
AV Robinson 1938*
NJB Roelvink 1996
H Rogers 1965*
EVM Shemwell 1912*
CG Soutar 1940*
GR Soutar 1943*
P St John 2009
C Stanford 2010
J Sutherland 2008
SAR Tuck 1942*
S Tocchini 1963*
RT Walden QPM 1944*
WH Walter 1921*
C Walton 1968*
JJ Waterer 1924*
GR Webb 1953*
CW Whitehead 1923*
EW Whitehead 1931*
*Deceased
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DISTINGUISHED SERVICE
1982 S Ryan*, R Higgins, B Anderson*, D Gordon*
1983 C Walton*, T Wise, CF Ashworth, M Gamlin*
1984 C Fry
1985 I Vickery*
1986 L Walker
1989 A McCarroll
1999 C Ryan, S Grose, G O’Sullivan, T Lane
2000 D O’Shannassy
2001 W Crampton, I Donald, J Fryer*
2005 HF Cranfield*, P Mathew, J Sutherland, T Howard
2007 KE Abraham, C Stanford, P St John, H Kernaghan, R Morton
2008 J Colwell, C Dooley, C Rath, M Keogh, L Cooper, T Platt, 
J Hay AM
2009 B Cronly
2010 M Peacock-Smith, M Neighbour
2012 R Birch
2013 D Foote, S Job
2014 G Cooper, H Matheson, J Mastrangelo, F Traugott, L Chalenor
2015 R Donaldson
2016 T Hare-Boyd
2017 D O’Brien, P Landsey, A Salier
2018 D Cowell
2019 C Stewart
2020 J Cooper, D Hillier
2021 T Falzarano
*Deceased

OUTSTANDING SERVICE
2009 G Cooper
2010 S Job, D Foote, A Traugott
2011 F Traugott
2012 T Hare-Boyd, R Humphrey, J Cooper
2014 P Friedman, T Rankine
2016 D Cowell
2017 T Falzarano, R Chapman, J Purvis
2018 J Frazer, M Maddox, M Stewart, C Stewart
2019 B Patrick, K Jenkins 
2020 D Edwards
2021 B Mariotti 

LONG SERVICE AWARDS
70 Years Keith Crampton
40 Years Paul Thomson
25 Years Anthony Purcell

PATROL SERVICE AWARDS
20 Years Frank Traugott
20 Years Shannon Job
15 Years Mark Maddox
10 Years Kyle Wong
10 Years Kyra Jenkins
10 Years Rory Macintyre
5 Years Thomas Wait
5 Years Kirk Henzlik
5 Years Lachlan Van der Pluijm
5 Years Evelyn Farrell
5 Years Mia Kasalo
5 Years Jack Herbert
5 Years Peter Herbert
5 Years Kai Brandson

OFFICIATING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
5 Years Damian O’Shannassy
5 Years David Guthrie

ASSESSING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
5 Years Richard Donaldson

TRAINING SERVICE CERTIFICATE
5 Years Kyra Jenkins

L to R:  Richard Donaldson accepting his Life Membership nomination.  Brian Mariotti accepting his Outstanding Service Award 
and Keith Abraham with Jack Sutherland receiving his 60 years Long Service Award.



Top Row: Life Members welcoming Richard Donaldson, Bernie Burrows Long Service Award
Second Row: Paul Mathew Long Service; Oscar Cowell presenting the Joe Jenkins Memorial Rescue Board, Frank Traugott Assessing Service

Below:  Col Stanford Long Service Award, and Keith Abraham and Tim Lawrence Officiating Service Awards
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Vale
It is with sadness that we report the passing of Joe Jenkins, Sadie Ryan, Doug Webb, 
Dr John Killick and Geoff Deegan. Our sincere sympathies to their families and our 
members who have suffered the loss of loved ones this past season.

JOSEPH “JOE” JENKINS
Joe tragically passed away in New Zealand in August 2021 at the 
age of 20. Joe  joined North Steyne SLSC as a Nipper in 2010. 
He won bronze in champion lifesaver at three successive "Aussies" 
and several state gold medals in champion lifesaver and bronze as 
a member of the open patrol competition team.

Whilst Joe will be remembered as an outstanding athlete he will also 
be remembered for his service to the community and humility. He 
was a member of Patrol 9 for 8 seasons. After obtaining his bronze 
medallion he did a total 256 patrol hours, more than 35 hours per 
season and received his 5 year SLSA national patrol service award.

The family held a livestream Requiem mass and the club held a 
paddle out to honour Joe. A special board was made by Bennett 
and a special award established at the Presentation Night in the 
name of Joe. The club received many letters of condolences from 
other surf clubs. 

The following words from Warnambool SLSC were particularly poignant and reflected the sentiment.
Losing members is always a moment that needs to be recognised in the Surf Lifesaving community 
but in the instance of the passing of your young member in Joseph Jenkins, the grief is felt across the 
country and especially with those that have shared the friendships and the embrace of your Club. As a 
club that has been in existence for over 90 years the Warrnambool Surf Life Saving Club understands 
the power that exists within its community, and we hope that the opportunity to draw on this collective 
strength is possible for all of you …

Fly high mate! You left a lasting impression on many and will not be forgotten.

SARAH “SADIE” RYAN

Sadie was the club’s first female recipient of a 
Distinguished Service Award.   Her tireless work 
with the lady’s auxillary spanned three decades 
in the late 1900’s.   She was a great, and vocal 
supporter of the North Steyne rugby teams.     As 
the matriarch of the Ryan Clan, she encouraged 
her sons, Chas and Jack in their membership of 
the club, where they completed their patrols and 
competed in carnivals.   Her daughter, Linda ably 
assisted her with the social aspect of North Steyne.
 

DOUG WEBB
Doug was a member in the 1970’s and 80’s.   He 
was the son of Life Member, George Webb and 
brother of Graham.   Doug was an active patrol 
member and a highly accomplished North Steyne 
rugby player.   He moved from The Peninsula 
to Bathurst, where he raised a family. George 
Webb became the fourth of only six North Steyne 
members to become a Life Member (No.34) of 
SLSA. The coveted Patrol of the Year award is 
named in honour of George Webb.

DR JOHN KILLICK
The club has only just learnt of the passing of 
Dr John Killick on Monday 31st August 2020 at 
the age of 88. He is the father of Alistair and Eve 
who were both active members of the club. The 
club benefitted enormously from John’s skill and 
profession as a doctor. He was Chief Instructor 
for four years from 1978 to 1981 and again in 
1986 during the presidency of Arthur McCarroll. 
John had one experience as a boat sweep. On 
the way back in the boat rolled with the crew and 
oars being flung out of the boat. Nick Roelvink 
said “Doc, You’re good at a lot of things, but 
that is the last time you take a boat out.” John is 
also the father of Eve Killick who was in the first 
women’s bronze group for the club in 1981, when 
her Father was the instructor. Eve has returned 
and completed her bronze medallion award again 
this season. 

GEOFF DEEGAN
Geoff passed away on Tuesday 21st June 2022 
after a long illness. He was a member from 1959 
to early 1970’s and a long service member after 
that.  Geoff was often helping out at carnivals. 
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Club Achievements 2021-2022 

Our Charitable Purpose 

NSSLSC is a charitable community based service organisation. NSSLSC is located within the 
Sydney Northern Beaches branch of Surf Life Saving New South Wales and Surf Life Saving 
Australia.  

NSSLSC is established for the Objects to: 

a. study, teach, promulgate and practice the methods of surf lifesaving; 

b. minimise loss of life and injury by providing surf lifesaving patrols and equipment for the purpose 
of rescues, resuscitation and first aid; 

c. foster, promote and encourage community service and sporting competition through surf 
lifesaving; 

d. conduct carnivals, competitions and social functions for the benefit of NSSLSC; 

e. pursue and manage funds to promote these Objects including sponsorship, fundraising, 
investments and marketing opportunities;

f. promote applicable national, state, branch and NSSLSC standards, policies, procedures and 
techniques for aquatic safety and lifesaving; 

g. act at all times in the interests of its members and surf lifesaving; and 

h. carry on any activity, whether directly or indirectly, which aims to enhance the interests of its 
members and surf lifesaving. 

• No lives lost whilst on patrol for the 115th year in a row.
• Provided emergency services support and clubhouse was command centre for flood rescue during      
storms.
• Raised nearly $8,000 for mental health awareness during the Gotcha4Life 24 Hour Row organised by 
Ally Stirling, Boat Captain.
• Membership remained steady at 828, a return rate of 99.9%.
• Richard Donaldson elected to life membership.
• 16 new bronze medallions and 20 new SRCs awarded.
•  Hosted a successful Nipper’s carnival in November 2021 and one of the largest Surf Boat carnivals of 
the season in January 2022.  
• Shannon Job awarded gold in Champion Lifesaver (Male 30-39) at Aussies. 
• Sarah Lally awarded bronze in Champion Lifesaver (Female 30-39) at Aussies.
• Co-hosted alongside Queenscliff SLSC the 2022 NSW Surf Life Saving Championships.
• Supported Surfing NSW and the World Surfing League by providing our clubhouse and bar services 
during Sydney Surf Pro Manly.
• Won the Lionel McDonald OAM Shield for open branch handicap point score at the Sydney Northern 
Beaches Awards of Excellence. 
•  Emilie Morris awarded highly commended as Youth Volunteer at Sydney Northern Beaches Awards of 
Excellence.
• Major David Guthrie was the guest speaker at the Anzac Day Ceremony at Manly Lifesaving Club
• Provided support for the Twenty/20 Cerebral Palsy Alliance and Northern Beaches Fun Run.
• Named new inflatable rescue boat after the late Neil Purcell OAM, Life Member.
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President’s Foreward
It has been a roller coaster of a season with many 
ups and downs, highs and lows, happiness and 
sorrow. We started in lockdown not knowing when 
and if the season would commence. Later in the 
season, Mother Nature was not kind to us and 
our patrolling, usual activities and the NSW State 
Championships were significantly disrupted by the 
wild weather. 

Despite this, we worked hard to ensure things could 
go on as planned. Our members demonstrated 
determination, courage and most of all resilience. 
We pulled together, showed up on the beach, 
adapted to the conditions and continued in our 
tradition of keeping people safe on North Steyne 
Beach.  

In our 115th season, we can proudly say that once 
again no lives were lost on North Steyne Beach 
whilst on patrol. This is because of our exceptional 
life savers, our outstanding trainers and the 
resilience of our members.

Our member numbers held steady with a total 
membership count of 828, which represents a 
99.9% return rate.  This figure was above average 
for our Branch and thank you to all our members 
who returned to the Club or chose North Steyne to 
obtain your Bronze Medallion.     

On Sunday, 8th August 2021, we held our Annual 
General Meeting online. A very experienced team 
returned to the Board, along with some new 
people who have added great ideas and energy 
throughout the season. A special mention goes 
to Jack Sutherland who is our  Deputy President 
and with his 68 years of membership also brings 
his very wise views. I appreciate all the support he 
provides to me.  I would also like to acknowledge 
Tony Falzarano who stepped off the Board after 
serving as Treasurer for many years and did an 
outstanding job. 

We embarked on a 
strategic plan and 
looked to where we 
want to be in 2025. The 
Board is focused on 
four areas to ensure we 
are sustainable into the 
future. These areas are:

1. Membership – to 
engage and grow our membership base; 
2. Clubhouse – secure tenure and commence our 
building refurbishment;
3. Business – improve how we run things and 
leverage the NSW State Championships; 
4. Leadership – develop our people and involve 
our local community.

We are working on specific activities related to 
these goals and are progressing on our strategic 
vision.

At the end of October, we participated in the 
Gotch4Life 24Hour Row to raise money for mental 
health awareness. Members young and old 
participated and we raised just shy of $8000 for 
this very worthy cause.  Thanks to Ally Stirling for 
her great efforts in coordinating this event.

When we could finally get together face-to-face, we 
held a Special General Meeting on Saturday, 11th 
December 2021 which recognised the contribution 
of many of our members. Congratulations to 
Richard Donaldson for receiving life membership 
– what a deserving recognition for an outstanding 
contributor to our Club.

We hosted our North Steyne Boat Carnival in 
January. We had some 70 crews compete in what 
was an action-packed day, including our own five 
crews. I would like to acknowledge and thank 
NED Australian Whisky for their great support of 
our boats.  All our competitors did us proud during 
the season, including all our Nippers who had 
some impressive results during carnivals. We had 
a strong Nipper contingent on the beach, and as 
always, it was great to see the Ripper Nippers each 
Sunday. What a fantastic group of kids and every 
year I am amazed at what they achieve. Thank 
you, David Cowell, for doing such an awesome job 
with these wonderful kids.

Our big focus during the season was the 
preparation for the NSW State Championships, 
hosted by Queenscliff, and scheduled to be held 
at North Steyne.  The Age Championships  kicked 
off as planned in mid-February, but due to health 
concerns and adverse weather conditions, these 
were cancelled after a few days. With continued 
extreme weather and the significant erosion of 
the beach, the very difficult decision was made by 
Surf Life Saving NSW to cancel the whole event.  
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While this was a disappointment, it was the right 
decision to ensure the health and safety of all 
competitors. We look forward to assisting with the 
NSW State Championships again in 2023.

With the adverse weather, our Emergency Call 
Out Team was in full swing and special thanks 
to David Guthrie, Jack Watt and a small team of 
our dedicated volunteers who participated in the 
flood rescue efforts. We had people dispatched to 
places such as Nowra and Penrith and worked in 
partnership with the SES to help where needed. 

We had the pleasure of naming and dedicating a 
new IRB to the late Neil Purcell OAM, a life member 
and at North Steyne for over 70 years. While he 
passed away a few years ago, it was great to 
remember him and reflect on his dedication and 
great contribution to our Club. 

We were well represented at the Australian 
Championships which were held on the Gold 
Coast.  A big congratulations to Shannon Job who 
came home with the GOLD in the male Champion 
Lifesaver (30-39yrs) and Sarah Lally who won 
BRONZE in the female Champion Lifesaver (30-
39yrs). We had a great team representing North 
Steyne and well done to all involved!

Our end-of-season awards night in May wrapped 
up the year. The mighty Patrol 5 won the coveted 
Patrol of the Year for all their outstanding efforts 
over the season. Our Club Person of the year was 
Shannon Job who was recognised for taking on 
the role as treasurer, managing our participation in 
the NSW State Championships, winning a gold at 
Aussies and just being a fantastic ambassador for 
and contributor to North Steyne. 

Other outstanding award winners included: Young 
Club Person of the Year, Lachlan Van der Pluijm; 
President’s Award, Jack Watt; Patrol person of 
the Year, Mark Stewart; Captain’s Trophy, David 
Guthrie; and Volunteer of the Year, Claire Oxlade.
We were also honoured to have presented for 
the first time the Joseph “Joe” Jenkins Memorial 
Award. This special award went to Oscar Cowell 
whose attitude and actions reflect everything 
that Joe stood for. Oscar is a fitting winner in 
remembrance of an outstanding young man.

In the wider community, we assisted with the 
Northern Beaches Sun Run, and we provided 
water safety crews for the Cerebral Palsy 20 
Twenty Fundraising event. We also worked with 
Surfing NSW on the Sydney Surf Pro in May and 
helped with the running of two bars during the 
competition. Big thanks to Paul Mathew for all his 
great work and to others for assisting with running 
the bar for this event.    

A highlight was welcoming a group of students 
from Dubbo, as part of the Clontarf Foundation’s 
reward programme.  We ran some SLS training 
activities for the boys and had fun in the surf with 
help from our Cadets as Water Safety.

This is my third year as President and I am proud to 
be leading a Club with a strong tradition of serving 
the community and one that is made up of such a 
great group of people. 

To our key sponsors the Balgowlah RSL, Manly 
Lions, and NED Australian Whisky, our Patrons 
James Griffin, David Hay and Jean Hay AM, and 
Des McAteer, our members, and to all my fellow 
North Steyne Directors, thank you for your great 
support and outstanding contribution. Despite 
all the adversity, we had a very successful year 
and our resilience is a testament to all we have 
achieved. 

Chris Gibbs Stewart 
President
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Deputy President’s Report
I have been thinking about all we have gone through since 1907. 

Our Club was greatly impacted by the WWI, only seven years after our 
establishment. Then came WWII which called many members to battle once 
again and saw barbed wire on our beach with the fear of a Japanese invasion. 
The Korean War and the Vietnam War came next. A substantial number of our 
members were sent to these conflicts, some receiving great accolades and some 
never returning. During all that adversity, we could count how many members we 
lost, and how many we had at home to patrol our beach. 

When COVID-19 hit in 2020, Dan Hiller was Club Captain with Jack Watt was Club Vice Captain, they both 
faced uncertainty, not knowing if we could fulfil our patrolling obligations. The past couple of seasons have 
been another level of challenge that will certainly go down in history. 

Jack stepped up as Club Captain for this season and we still had no idea how many people they had to 
patrol our beach. We were unsure of what was expected, how we were to operate, and there was again a 
high-level of uncertainty.  As always though, our members rallied and came to the fore and made it possible 
for our Club Captain to put patrols on our beach every week and ensure the safety of our community.

I am very please to say that no lives were lost once again for this season, our 115th year. 

On top of the pandemic, this was perhaps our worst summer ever with the wild weather, pollution and the 
destruction of our beach. We were able to run several large events, and others were all organised and 
ready to go, only to be cancelled. The way Jack, with the support of Kyra, this season managed things and 
how our members stepped up, we should be very proud that we kept things going in the true tradition of 
our Club. Thanks for their excellent work and thanks to all our great members.

This season, one event I was pleased to be involved in was the IRB Naming Ceremony. It was an honour 
to present the newest inflatable rescue boat to our fleet, named in honour of our friend and fellow “Clubbie” 
Neil Purcell, OAM and Life Member.  Thank you to the crowd that showed on the day to support the 
unveiling and to join in the celebrations.

I am very pleased to say that our Life Member Coffee Mornings are back!! First Wednesdays of every 
month we get together in the Clubroom for a chat and a cuppa.  All welcome!

Finally, I would like to thank my fellow Directors for all your hard work, organising everything and  keeping 
things going during this unusual season; and extra special thanks to Claire for all her support on the BBQ, 
our A team are always super organised with her help.

Jack Sutherland 
Deputy President & Life Member
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Secretary’s Report
North Steyne had big plans for the season. Instead, 
for events beyond its control the season could 
easily be referred to as the “stop, start, stop again, 
start again season”. It was odd for many reasons. 
It was challenging, frustrating, distressing and 
hard. But it was also exceptional and inspirational. 
Despite the frustrations members should feel 
pleased with what the club attempted to achieve 
and what it did achieve. The club did many things 
on a scale it had never done before. 

There were many unusual practices and events. 
On 8th August 2021 the club held its AGM by zoom 
for the first time in its history. The agenda was 
restricted to business only including the election of 
board directors and panels. Then, on 11th August, 
there was a personal tragedy that rocked the 
entire club - the tragic death of Joe Jenkins at the 
age of 20. This was devastating. It was dignified 
the way the North Steyne “family” and the Jenkins 
family rallied to support one another and honour 
the memory of Joe.

The season had many other setbacks. The season 
start was delayed by another COVID-19 lockdown 
and restrictions. It began with “stay at home” 
orders. Then outdoor exercise was permitted in 
groups of two within your local government area. 
That rule caused great confusion, angst and a lot 
of administration.

There were many uncertainties. When would the 
season start? What would it look like? Would we 
have members? What age will those members be? 
The NSW Government and health authorities, 
as an incentive to allow people to come out of 
lockdown, mandated vaccination. Policies on 
vaccination were complex and changed frequently. 
Early on only members who were 16+ and double 
vaccinated were allowed to participate. If that was 
not hard enough the club was expected to police 
strict compliance. The club was expected to check 
vaccination status and record it in surfguard. 
Access to the club was closed. There was no hall 
hire. It was a stressful and challenging time. It led 
to a significant amount of disharmony, increase in 
administration and had to be managed. Special 
thanks to Cath, Chris, Paul, Jack and Dan for 
steering us through this.

In early September gear inspection was 
undertaken by clubs in lockdown. That has never 
been done before but we got through. Flags were 
raised on 18th September with strict rules applying 
to patrols and beachgoers. Patrols were restricted 
to six members. Masks were required to be worn.

As NSW vaccination rates increased, things started 
to open up and rules changed again. Nippers and 
Surfsports had to develop contingency plans for 

staggered starts. Nippers 
started on 7th November 
and North Steyne hosted 
the first carnival in the 
branch on Sunday 14th 
November. It was a 
successful carnival but 
attendance was down due 
to COVID-19 concerns. 
Well done Sarah, Surf 
sports and Nippers.

So now the club is beginning to function towards 
normal. Considerable efforts were made to retain 
and encourage new members. Towards the end 
of October NSW vaccination rates had reached 
80%. We were beginning to be more confident we 
would have some members and a clubhouse that 
could be readily accessed. The club reopened on 
11th October. Our BBQ and Club bar re-started a 
few weeks after.

Our membership was impressive considering the 
start. Membership remained steady at 828, a return 
rate of 99.9%, in line with branch membership.

On 11th December we held a Special General 
Meeting (SGM) in the club. It was the first SGM the 
club has conducted in more than a decade. At that 
meeting Richard Donaldson was elected to Life 
Membership, Tony Falzarano given Distinguished 
Service and Brian Mariotti given Outstanding 
Service for their longstanding service to the club. 
Congratulations and well deserved.

In late December, SLSNSW circulated a COVID-19 
Vaccination Policy mandating vaccines for 
everyone 13years+ participating in surf lifesaving 
and coming into effect on 1 February 2022. 

Discussions and planning to support Queenscliff 
SLSC with hosting the NSW State Championships 
had begun in August. It was a big event and 
undertaking. 

In  November, I attended the SLSNSW media 
launch at Queenscliff with the other stakeholders.  
On 14th December the club signed a historic 
3-year agreement with SLSNSW to support 

North Steyne 2020/21 2021/22

Nippers (5-13 years) 349 309

Cadets (13-15 years) 20 29

Youth (15-18 years) 70 49

Active (18 years and over) 143 166

Life Member 18 19

General 229 256

TOTAL 829 828

Patrolling Membership 214 209
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Queenscliff SLSC as a host club and run events 
on North Steyne beach. Thank you Shannon Job 
who took on the role as Club Liaison Officer and 
Chris Stewart for your negotiations with SLSNSW, 
Queenscliff SLSC and Northern Beaches Council.

A lot of work had gone into preparing for the State 
Championships. The Northern Beaches Council 
organised and completed the painting works inside 
the Hall and Clubroom before the event. Thanks 
to our members for removing memorabilia, and 
David Cowell, Paul Mathew, Claire Oxlade, Liv 
Pennie and others for refit of the bar. These efforts 
transformed the club.

The NSW State Championships was scheduled 
from 24th Feb - 13th March. We were ready and 
keen to welcome competitors from the rest of the 
state. Our hall was utilised as the administration 
and media centre for SLSNSW. In the lead up 
to and including the Nippers championships an 
extreme La Nina weather event occurred along 
eastern Australia causing havoc weather. Sydney 
Northern Beaches was not spared. Beaches 
were eroded, coastal waters were polluted. This 
lead to the cancellation of the remainder of the 
championships after only a few days. Thanks to 
our committed members who turned up in the 
dark, in torrential rain to ensure the event was a 
success -Kyra, Shannon (and Claire), Paul, Paul’s 
brother from Adelaide (David), Chris, Kyle, Deb, 
Sarah Lally and Sarah Kinghorn.

This unprecedented weather event continued until 
July with a brief respite in May and June. Along 
with the pandemic, the weather event defined our 
season. Our Ocean Swim was cancelled and the 
Cerebral Palsy event we support was postponed. 
It even rained during the Sun Run and the Sydney 
SurfPro.

The Sydney Surf Pro returned to our beach, 
attracting some of the world’s top surfers. Running 
from 14th - 24th May, we signed an agreement 
to support the event. The clubhouse was utilised 
as their administration and media centre, a 
unique opportunity for the club. We obtained a 

special event licence to run the VIP and outdoor 
bars. Special thanks to Paul Mathew who spent 
considerable time obtaining the licence, acting as 
licensee and organising a team of RSA’s who ran 
the VIP and public bars. It was great to work with 
Luke Maddern, CEO of Surfing NSW, Mick Talbot, 
Event Organiser and their team. Images of North 
Steyne were streamed to the rest of the world.

Whilst the weather was disruptive it helped to 
showcase the club in an unexpected way. North 
Steyne became the command centre for the rescue 
and emergency effort for flood affected areas 
including the Nepean, North,  South and Western 
Sydney. A special thanks to David Guthrie, Jack 
Watt and our IRB teams for a job well done. It was 
a reminder that surf lifesaving is more than just the 
beach but a community organisation dedicated to 
serving the wider community at a time of adversity 
and emergency.

Our IRB Captain, Major David Guthrie, from 
Australian Army Headquarters Forces Command 
also featured prominently as the guest speaker at 
the Anzac Day Ceremony at Manly LSC organised 
by our friend and Manly lifesaver, Colonel John 
Platt. The focus was on service to the community 
from our lifesavers who went to war, some making 
the ultimate sacrifice.

Club administration was also busy in other 
areas – drafting Treasury and Administration 
policies, agreements with SLSNSW and Surfing 
NSW, progress towards a new lease, charities 
commission filings, COVID-19  policies, compliance 
with regulations and general administration to 
run the club. Board meetings were generally well 
attended by zoom, in the room or both.

Thanks to George Van Dyck (in first half of the 
season) and Shannon Job for managing our 
finances in Treasury. A big thanks to Cath Hillier 
in the role of  Administration Manager, to keep 
the club running smoothly and for compiling the 
Annual Report. Special mention to David Cowell, 
many of the improvements to the club, fundraising 
and working with sponsors is a direct result of his 
efforts. Thanks to Sarah and Simon for assistance 
with board documents and minutes.

Once again it has been a pleasure working with 
Chris, our President. It is the 6th year we have 
worked together as either President or Secretary. 
Chris is extremely capable, passionate and 
committed and deserves your support. Thank you 
to Chris for your hard work in guiding us through 
this challenging year.

Thank you all for your support over the years. 

Frank Traugott 
Secretary
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needed to re-sit the bronze 
and she did so in challenging 
conditions at Whale and 
Palm Beach. Well done and 
welcome back Eve!  You are 
a true asset to North Steyne!     

IRB Awards
The inflatable rescue boat or 
IRB is a critical operational 
tool that is used in modern surf lifesaving.  It 
allows quick access to water based rescues or 
support in almost any situation.  IRB Crew and 
Drivers are critical members of surf patrols and 
their education ensures we have competent and 
operational ready members to help the public 
in the surf or increasingly as part of emergency 
service requirements such as flood rescues.  

This year we would like to thank four of our 
members who stepped up to become Drivers 
under the guidance of our very experienced 
trainers Richard Donaldson, Dave Guthrie and 
Kyra Jenkins.  Congratulations to Brian Mariotti, 
Ewan Cooper-Frater, Sarah Lally and Matthew 
Riordan.

First Aid
Understanding First Aid is one of the core functions 
necessary for our members on patrol. 

In 2021, a new updated version of the course, 
the HLTAID011 Provide First Aid replaced the 
superseded course so it was necessary to 
encourage our members to upgrade, even those 
who only just completed the course the year 
before.  Thank you to those of you who managed 
to do this either online, external or in person at the 
club.  It is great to see you are all keen to keep 
your skills and awards up to date.

This course upgrade in turn affected our ability 
to run an Advanced Rescusciation Technique 
(ART) Course. Only members who upgraded their 

What a year! Another one impacted by COVID-19 
lockdowns, releases and unprecedented weather 
events.  The good news we did get a patrolling 
season and with that training across the club. 

My first year as Chief Training Officer, with 
David Guthrie as Assistant, presented us with a 
number of new opportunities including building 
on the number of trainers we have and  looking 
at more diverse and unique training opportunities 
for members outside the norm, for example the 
ALBERT course. Overall, the training this year was 
broader. 

Annual Proficiencies
The start of the year saw the education team 
work with lifesaving to ensure our members were 
competent with annual proficiencies across all 
relevant awards.

Surf Rescue Certificates (SRC)
The SRC is the first award heading into surf 
lifesaving undertaken by U14 members.  The SRC 
involves teaching our young members the skills 
they will need to become a lifesaver and to help 
prepare them to take the next step the Bronze 
Medallion.  I would like to thank Jodie Frazer and 
her team of helpers who were instrumental in 
getting our Youth members ready and trained to 
take the SRC course.  Congratulations to Jodie on 
winning the Gary O’Sullivan Trophy for Trainer of 
the Year. 

Bronze Medallion
The Bronze is a critical award to ensure we have 
lifesavers to patrol the beach. It is open to anyone 
over 15 years of age.  This year we had a mixed 
group consisting of matriculating SRC’s, Nipper 
parents, friends of patrolling members and school 
groups.  We also had a returning member, Eve 
Killick. This is a shout out to Eve. Eve was in the 
first female bronze group to go through North 
Steyne in the 1980’s, pictured below, with her Dad 
as CTO. Her time away from the club meant she 

Education Director’s  Report
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First Aid could sit the new ART course.  SLSSNB 
assisted here by running the course at branch hq, 
but next season we hope to be able to run the ART 
course from our Club. 

Beach Management
This award trains members on how to manage the 
beach and patrol as a Patrol Captain.  We have 
been fortunate to see growing interest in these 
senior and important roles which is good news for 
the club.  Congratulations to Hanna Clare, Freya 
O’Neill and Shane O’Neill for gaining their BM’s.

Officials Course
This year we ran an Officials course at North 
Steyne. We saw a number of members 
including Nipper Parents and Boaties complete 
the course to ensure we had representation 
at Carnivals we were participating in.   

RWC Pilots (Jetski)
This season it was good to see we had a number 
of members participate in the Rescue Water Craft 
(RWC) Jet ski program run through Branch.

Overall, there have been some excellent training 
opportunities taken up by our members. We have 
also had some challenges this season given that 
some of the knowledge base was lost with trainers 
either moving to other clubs or to adventures 
outside surf. 

We have been fortunate to have available more 
advanced courses to offer our members, such as 
Advanced Lifesaving Boat Emergency Training 
(ALBERT) which was very well represented by 
North Steyne members and taught our IRB Drivers 
and Crew more advanced techniques and skills to 
ensure they are ready to respond to any situation.  

Across the club there has also been training which 
is outside traditional awards-based training, it is 
an important part of the club’s fabric. For example, 
training our surfboat crews and sweeps.  I would 
like to thank David Maguire for his commitment to 
training multiple crews over the season which has 
led to some solid surfboat results at surf carnivals.  

Thanks also to Col Stanford for his efforts in 
training up new crews and sweeps, including 
our first female sweep Ally Stirling, to ensure the 
knowledge is passed on to the next generation in 
this unique discipline. 

Finally, I would like to thank our dedicated group 
of trainers for their efforts this season.  Frank 
Traugott for mentoring Lochie Van der Pluijm and 
myself through our Training Officers award during 
two bronze courses under COVID conditions.  I 
would also like to thank Lochie for his efforts with 
the Bronze training group this season as well.  
Additionally, Kyra Jenkins for her leading role 
during this year’s Bronze course and also her work 
with SRC training. Well done team!  In terms of 
IRB I would like to thank David Guthrie, Richard 
Donaldson and Kyra Jenkins for ensuring we have 
competent drivers and crews. As noted earlier, a 
big thank you to Jodie Frazer for all her involvement 
and success with the SRC’s.

I would like to thank Cath in the office, who assisted 
with our administrative requirements including  
course waitlists, course paperwork, website 
updates, Team App access, sourcing external 
trainers, managing the award certificates and 
medallions and venue bookings.

Finally, a big thanks to my assistant David Guthrie 
for his enthusiasm and commitment to ensuring we 
are delivering the training needs to all our members.
 
Dan Hillier 
Chief Training Officer
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Education Awards and Patrol Statistics 
BRONZE MEDALLION
CERT II AQUATIC RESCUE
Dylan Ford
Luke Gordon
Isabella Havryk
Mick Kirchner
Peta Kilgour
Evelyn Killick
Ted Litchfield
Jessica Marshall
Joanna McGlashan
Lukas Muller
Andrew O’Farrell
Natasha Paine
Xavier Small
Jonathan Townsend
Oskar Townsin-Brant
Sienna Wessell

SILVER MEDALLION 
IRB DRIVERS
Sarah Lally
Brian Mariotti
Frazer Richardson
Matthew Riordan

SILVER MEDALLION
BEACH MANAGEMENT
Hanna Clare
Freya O’Neill
Shane O’Neill

PROVIDE FIRST AID 
Michael Altenburger 
Kai Brandson
Francesca Brady
Bernard Burrows 
Colleen Button 
Joanne Cooper 
Richard Donaldson 
Charlotte Faulk
Jodie Frazer 
Alice Galt
David Guthrie 
Jack Herbert
Peter Herbert
Dan Hillier
Cath Hillier
Emma Hillier
Kyra Jenkins 
Sarah Lally
Edward Litchfield
Brian Mariotti
Emilie Morris
Alec Parren
Elizabeth Oxiade 
Maxine Peacock-Smith 

Antonia Remedios 
Oscar Townsin-Brant
Desmond Silberberg 
Karen Smith
Mark Stewart 
James Townsend 
Frans Traugott 
Roisin Tumilty 
Lou Van de Zande
Jack Watt 
Emma Winter
Caroline Yarnell

SURF RESCUE CERTIFICATE 
(SRC)
Larnach Black
Charlie Colwell
Oliver Crofton
Monet Delmar
Capucine Dequidt
Charlie Gordon
Sophie Hamer
Eva Haughton
Sienna Hogan
Mabel James
Abigail Kelly
Chloe Kelly
Natasha Martinez 
Charles McEwan
Sophie Paddison
Kaea Phillips
Annica Pittar
Taylor Roberts
Josh Turner
Connor Wallis
Riley Wallis

ALBERT Program
David Guthrie
Peter Herbert
Jack Herbert
Dan Hillier
Kyra Jenkins
Sarah Lally
Brian Mariotti
Antonio Remedios
Lou Lou Stanley
Mark Stewart
Rosin Tulmity
Lachlan Van der Pluijm

TRAINING OFFICER
Daniel Hillier
Lachlan Van der Pluijm

NORTH STEYNE BEACH  

ATTENDANCE:	         		  41739
    
PREVENTATIVE ACTIONS:	 141	

TOTAL RESCUES:		  10	  
No Gear  		    2
Rescue Board 		    5
Rescue Tube		    1 
IRB 			     2

TOTAL FIRST AID:		  23	
Drowning		    0
Fracture/Dislocation 	   1
Heart Related		    0
Major Marine Stings	   0
Major Wounds 		    2
Minor Cuts/Abrasions 	   6
Minor Marine Stings 	   8
Other			     6
Spinal			     0
Shock 			     0
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Club Captain’s Report
Season 2021/2022 will certainly be a year North 
Steyne can proudly look back on. From adapting 
our practices as health restrictions eased, to 
helping with the SLSNSW Flood Relief effort, or 
patrolling with the challenges of significant sand 
erosion, the North Steyne Lifesaving team has 
overcome every trial these eight months have 
thrown their way. 

As my first year as Club Captain, it has been a 
privilege to support our incredible volunteers 
deliver top quality lifesaving services. The season 
began shrouded with uncertainty over who could 
patrol and how we would patrol. As December 
approached, health restrictions eased just in time 
for our peak season to begin. Even without tourism, 
our patrols saw some very challenging days on the 
sand, having to always remain vigilant, whether 
the sun was out, the rain drenching, or the wind 
high. 

The team’s major focus this year was to develop 
and begin implementation of a lifesaving strategy 
for the next few seasons. The theme of this strategy 
centres around patrol culture, fostering the growth 
of good leadership, reimagining how we can patrol 
effectively in a changing volunteer environment, 
and ensuring North Steyne produce the highest 
quality lifesavers for years to come.

This year the panel were successful in investing 
in our emergency response functions, increasing 
member agency and participation in lifesaving 
operations and enhanced transparency in 
lifesaving information at North Steyne.  

More hands make lighter work. The Lifesaving 
Panel this year consisted of Kyra Jenkins (Assistant 
Club Captain), Dave Guthrie (IRB Captain/ 
Assistant Chief Training Officer), Matt Riordan 
(Patrols Coordinator), Paul Mathew (Medical 
Advisor), Steven Mastrangelo (Radio Officer), our 
14 Patrol Captains and me. This fantastic team 
met every two months and deserve a huge thank 
you for their efforts this year. Together, we held 

consistent discussions on 
both operational and strategic 
matters to make sure 
everyone within lifesaving 
was working towards a single 
goal.

The Lifesaving Panel worked 
on providing clear, relevant 
lifesaving information to 
members, in particular the Patrol Operations 
Manual and Lifesaving Procedures at the club. 
This involved updating the lifesaving information 
on the Club’s website and additionally, throughout 
COVID-19 restrictions, putting together a variety 
of media to keep members informed and updated  
as restrictions changed.

Additionally, the Panel implemented two new 
initiatives to progress lifesaving practices at North 
Steyne. Special Occasion Patrols were offered for 
those wanting to get a group of friends together 
and spend a Saturday afternoon patrolling with 
people beyond their patrol. A group of Nipper 
parents utilised this and absolutely loved the 
atmosphere of their patrol. 

Five of our more experienced lifesavers were also 
selected to run a skill sharing programme for our 
patrols. This programme allowed members to ask 
questions, develop skills and hone their lifesaving 
knowledge while patrolling, reducing the barriers 
to access the fantastic knowledge base North 
Steyne has. Thank you to Kyra Jenkins, Deb 
Foote, Shannon Job and Rebecca Chapman for 
helping facilitate this.



	 North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 	 ABN 99 734 830 191				    115th Annual Report | Page 16	

As an emergency service, Surf Life Saving will 
progressively be utilised more in emergency 
response functions in future seasons. As a 
club with a proud history and reputation within 
lifesaving, it is important for North Steyne to equip 
the club with the necessary tools and training to 
effectively respond to these situations. Season 
2021/22 featured two after hours call outs locally, 
and a two-week long operation supporting 
SLSNSW with the NSW Flood Emergency. Our call 
out team, and volunteers who stepped up to help 
out in extraordinary circumstances have the club’s 
gratitude for giving up their time and showcasing 
the club’s impressive personnel. 

With support from Northern Beaches Council 
under the Patrols Incentive Scheme, this season 
our 209 active patrolling members completed 10 
rescues, 23 first aids and 141 preventative actions.  
The COVID-19 restrictions meant we faced some 
labour challenges, whether that be accessing the 
beach for those beyond our Local Government 
Area or ensuring our awards were covered. I am 
extremely proud that we consistently put together 
strong lifesaving teams and strived to exceed our 
minimum standards. I would like to especially 
thank our 30 volunteers who patrolled over 50 
hours this season. These individuals consistently 
stepped up and helped with substitutions where 
necessary and always made sure our units were 
vigilant while on  patrol.

A special thank you goes out to our fantastic 
Patrol Captains; Mark Stewart, James Townsend, 
Kyra Jenkins, Lachlan Van der Pluijm, Jeff Brown, 
Emma Hillier, Danny Gompes, Paul Mathew, Tim 
Platt, Neils Thelosen, David Cowell, Jodie Frazer 
and Jo Cooper, and Bernie Burrows. It was James 
and Neils’ first year as Patrol Captain. Both were 
very impressive in organising and running their 
designated patrols.

Our IRBs required constant attention throughout 
the patrolling season. David Guthrie went above 
and beyond to ensure our hulls and motors were 
always operational. Additionally, the club named 
our new hull the Neil Purcell OAM. The occasion 
was a fantastic spectacle for those in attendance. 

Finally, a thank you goes to the Assistant Club 
Captain Kyra Jenkins. This past season has been 
a steep learning curve and without her constant 
support and guidance, the Lifesaving portfolio 
wouldn’t have achieved everything we have. 
This season has been an absolute joy to be 
Club Captain. I am looking forward to lifesaving 
at North Steyne next season and ensuring our 
beach is safe for our members and the public. 

Jack Watt 
Club Captain
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IRB Captain’s Report
The Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) group spent this season getting back to basics 
and reinforcing the foundations of equipment, training and maintenance.  It doesn’t 
sound very exciting but the work done this season will ensure we continue to deliver 
reliable, capable rescue services to the community.

The season began with four new IRB Drivers (IRBDs) qualified, another new hull 
operational and skills maintained in a range of challenging environments. The club 
has more IRB assets than ever and this season we were able to put four IRBs on 
the water at one time.

Our two newest Type 1 soft hulls reinforce the Type 2 hard hull ‘workhorses’ of the fleet. Whilst we have 
been anticipating retiring the hard hulls, they were invaluable in floodwaters across the state when called 
upon to respond. 

As one of only three clubs in the branch with these hard hulls, North Steyne SLSC was asked by SLSNSW 
to deploy on numerous occasions and our hard-working crewies and drivers were consistently up to the 
challenge. My thanks goes out to all those in the call-out teams or from the broader club who responded 
to requests for assistance. Your actions did not go unnoticed with SLSSNB and SLSNSW executive 
members consistently noting the contributions of your club through the long period of significant weather 
events.

Upskilling is hard to do for IRBD and IRB Crew (IRBC) because it requires experienced instruction, many 
assets and even more time given to training but North Steyne SLSC had the largest club group attend 
the Australian Lifesaving Boat Emergency Rescue Training (ALBERT) conducted at Dee Why beach in 
May. These new and revised skills will be reinforced with all IRB personnel to improve and sustain our 
ability to protect our community on Manly beach.

IRBD and IRBC from the club also spent a lot of time on the water providing safety for the many events 
run throughout the season. Those activities rely on the many hours these club members volunteer and 
couldn’t happen without their support. That said, we always need more members to train for these 
awards. With some of our experienced IRBD and IRBC moving away for work in the last year, there are 
vacancies across the club, for patrols and the many other IRB tasks.

There will be IRB Diver and Crew training courses 
being held early each season and every surf lifesaver 
is encouraged to approach the IRB Captain or the 
Chief Training Officer to find out how to join the ranks.

Two great new awards were instituted this season 
recognising the IRBD and IRBC who have made a 
notable contribution to the club in the previous year. 
The awards not only recognise the contribution of 
time to the club but also individual skills development, 
teamwork and mentoring. The award of a brand new 
Surf Rescue lifejacket personalised with your name 
isn’t a bad prize either. Congratulations to Brian 
Mariotti (IRBD) and Craig Shadbolt (IRBC) for being 
recognised this year.

Season 22/23 should be outstanding for IRBs with an 
additional two new outboard motors arriving, many 
more training and upskilling opportunities, and lots 
of fun to be had on the greatest beach in the world. 

David Guthrie
IRB Captain
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Youth Director’s Report
It was certainly a challenging start to the 2021-22 
season. Having only adjusted to unprecedented 
circumstances from last year, our planned off-
season Youth training and social activities were 
once again placed on hold as we faced a longer 
COVID-19 lockdown period and newly imposed 
travel restrictions.

As a further blow, our Youth members could not 
immediately return to the beach once restrictions 
started to ease as there were vaccination 
requirements and public health orders in place, 
preventing our youngest patrolling members to 
re-join their patrols until November, several weeks 
after the start of the season.

Despite the late start, our Youth members returned 
to North Steyne with gusto, attending group 
training, proficiencies, patrols, surf sports events, 
and volunteering at club events.

Membership numbers have increased this season, 
up 145% on last season in the 13-15 years age 
group.

Additionally, the retention of older teens has also 
improved from last year, with a return of 65% of 
members in the 15-17 years age group, as opposed 
to only 54% for the season prior. Membership 
loss in the older age group is greatly impacted 
by patrol scheduling conflicts with teen weekend 
employment rosters and higher education study 
opportunities in areas outside of Sydney.

Education continues to play an important role in 
youth skills development to bolster patrol strengths 
and there have been several new Awards obtained 
by our young patrolling members throughout the 
season. This includes 20 Surf Rescue Certificate, 
eight Bronze, and 11 Provide First Aid.  A big thank 

you to all the trainers and 
assessors involved with 
their training programs. 
And a further thank you to 
parents and carers for your 
assistance with transport, 
set-up, pack up and rallying 
the teen troops as required.

Halfway through the 
season, Patrol 13 was repurposed into a Youth 
training patrol for North Steyne’s teen members to 
practice their newly acquired skills and/or train for 
new awards in training scenarios, and in real-life 
patrol incidents.  

This patrol also provided an opportunity for the SRC 
training group to remain together for the remainder 
of the season to gain first-hand experience on their 
new patrols next season. There were several fun, 
themed patrols including the Rainbow Beaches 
diversity and inclusion day and the Pink Patrol 
honouring SNB female members. We love a 
good excuse to dress up and wear colourful zinc! 
Thank you to Mark Stewart, Richard Donaldson, 
Jon Colwell, Stuart Crofton and Jo Cooper for your 
assistance on these patrols.

It was delightful to see the increased enthusiasm 
for surf sports from our Youth members this season, 
with participation across Water, Beach, Lifesaving 
and Boat disciplines. We also had representation 
in board and beach relays at Nipper carnivals in 
the newly introduced “U15 Youth” age group as 
well as Youth Aussies competitors trying out their 
skills at the Gold Coast in individual and team 
events. Congratulations to our Youth medallists for 
bringing home some “bling” and to all our Youth 
competitors for your dedication and hard work at 
training and on carnival days.



Thank you to all our club coaches and the North 
Steyne SLSC Surf Sports team for mentoring our 
Youth competitors.

North Steyne’s Youth members continue to be 
active in many parts of the Club, offering weekly 
assistance with Nippers and Ripper Nippers water 
safety and beach coordination, assisting as event 
workforce volunteers at club-hosted carnivals 
including set up, water safety, BBQ and the First 
Aid tent, acting as course-helpers for the Northern 
Beaches Council Sun Run, supporting various 
functions at the Club Awards night, and providing 
water safety at other events including the 20 
Twenty Cerebral Palsy swim. 

We are very fortunate to have a committed group of 
community-minded young members, willing to give 
up their time for North Steyne SLSC initiatives and 
who are also juggling patrols, study, work, sports 
and life commitments throughout the season.

I would like to offer a big shout out to all my 
helpers throughout the season, particularly those 
that have assisted with Youth training. This long 
list includes: Kyra Jenkins, Frazer Richardson 
and my assistant Brian Mariotti for your help 
with SRCs and board training; Jo Cooper for 
general assistance with SRCs and their patrols; 
Dave Guthrie, Richard Donaldson and Mark 
Stewart for your assistance with IRB training; 
Club Trainers, Dan Hillier, Frank Traugott, Kyra 
Jenkins and Lachlan Van der Pluijm for your 
assistance with Bronze training; and a special 
thank you to Life Member, Keith Abraham, for 
successfully demonstrating to the SRC’s how 
to use patrol signal flags on one breezy Sunday 
morning!

Thank you also to our SRC parents and Age 
Managers: Stuart and Chris Cofton, Di Phillips, 
Chris Haughton and Life Member, Jon Colwell.

Lastly, a very special thank you to all our youth 
members for your continued resilience for yet 
another roller-coaster season.  I look forward to a 
fantastic season ahead. 

Jodie Frazer  
Youth Director
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With a late start, an early finish due to State, 
torrential rain, floods, existing through a pandemic, 
somehow, we managed to slot in a Nipper season 
with 14 Sunday mornings! With Brian finishing his 
time of service and leaving the Nipper crew, this 
season we took a broader team approach.

Although I may have been at the helm, it wouldn’t 
have happened without my enthusiastic team, 
taking their roles to another level! Simon Herfort 
took over Sundays and the practical side of 
Nippers; Hillary looking after all the administration 
and the headaches that come; and Jon Colwell 
looked after everything to do with Water Safety 
with 100% success.  We are all very proud that 
not a single incident form was filled out.  Along 
with all the parent volunteers Nippers ran as one 
big team.

Our season kicked off on the first Sunday in 
November a month later than planned due to the 
Government restrictions on public gatherings. We 
took a different approach this season and broke 
the Nippers cohort into two groups. We moved to 
a 9am start and dropped the communal muster. 
Kids now went straight to their first area and 
started activities. We split Nippers by age, U6-8s 
went to the South of the club and U9-14s to the 
North. Two parents stepped up; Simon took the 
South & Diane “Di” Phillips the North. In the North 
Di co-ordinated so the kids all got a fair shake at 
each skill . Within U9-U14s we ran skill stations 
in a schedule including activities such as board, 
swimming, education, sprints and flags.  The idea 
was as kids get older, they need to spend their time 
being challenged by new skills, not challenging 
our Age Managers. 

The concept was for Age Managers to become 
kid managers and not need to be subject matter 
experts.  The aim was to make it easier and 
more enjoyable for parents to get involved as age 
managers and age assistants.    At each Station 
we would have a team of parents and coaches 
with the skill set to teach the kids thus not relying 
on an Age Assistants / Managers to do everything. 
To help visually represent the stations they had a 
tent and an associated colour:  Beach – Yellow; 
Boards – Blue; Swim – Green.

Nipper Numbers 
Like most sports, COVID-19 and the uncertainty 
surrounding it waned our overall numbers. This 
season 309 Nippers registered which was down 
10% on 2020/21 season but higher than we 
anticipated.

Water Safety
This season Jon Colwell 
brought his skill set to the 
table. Jono engaged with the 
teenage SRC’s and Bronzies 
to assist with water safety for 
Sunday Nippers.  This was 
not only a great idea but a 
great success. A win-win 
as they say, parents got to 
keep their clothes on and stay dry on those cold 
days and our SRC developed their own skills!  We 
would like to thank those members - Alec Parren, 
Annabel Filmer, Charolotte Faulk, Emilie Morris, 
Oskar Townsin-Brandt, Emma Winter, Freya 
O’Neill, Lexie Landrak and Marielle Eslick. 

Special thanks to our Nipper parents who assist 
with Water Safety at Sunday mornings, training 
sessions and nipper carnivals - Stuart Crofton, 
Mark Lancaster, Simon Herfort, Dean Robinson, 
Chris Haughton, Erin Colwell, Scott Turner, Kristy 
Walker, and Sarah Lally. Once again, I have a 
couple of ex Nipper parents who turn up every 
Sunday morning and help. My sincere thanks to 
Shane O’Neill & Derrek Minihane.

Age Managers
Before this season commenced, we conducted 
an online zoom Age Managers/Assistants course.  
This was run by Doug Howlett from Sydney Branch 
and was very successful with 50 parents taking 
part. From the Online course 35 parents completed 
the practical beach component on Sunday 31st 
October to become a fully qualified Age Managers. 
My thanks to my team plus Tim Lawrence (Beach) 
and Jack Watt (Life Saving) for assisting on the 
day. This is the first time North Steyne has had a 
fully qualified cohort of parents for Sundays.  As 
we all know, Nippers is run entirely by volunteers.  
This level of parent engagement helps so much in 
our ability to deliver a positive learning experience 
to the kids. Well done!  

Proficiencies
COVID-19 again disrupted the norm but it proved 
a blessing in disguise as we were forced to adapt 
and change on the fly.  Historically we have hired 
Manly Boy Charlton Aquatic Centre however 
this was ruled out as an option. An alternative 
venue, being the Queensie ocean pool, was 
found where we held three double sessions. 
Then as we got into a rhythm the council decided 
to give the Queensie pool a clean and emptied 
the pool!  In came Team App communications 
and within 10 minutes Freshie was the new 
venue and all the parents got a notification.   

Junior Activity Director’s Report
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A great reminder to all to have access to TeamApp 
for those last-minute changes. 

Competition Officials
At carnivals it’s a requirement to supply one 
official for every 10 competitors, so on behalf of 
our nipper competitors, I would like to thank our 
long-term officials Keith Abraham, Tim Lawrence, 
Chris Dooley & Frank Traugott. I would also like 
to congratulate two of our parents, Tori Robinson 
& Brad Collins who stepped up and became 
officials. Not always an easy task and sometimes 
a detriment to watching your child compete. You 
both are valued and appreciated by all!

Coaches
Our Nippers program rides on its’ coaches and this 
season we had two of the best: Tom Beddingfield 
in the water, and Rubin Ruzicka on the beach. Both 
are very accomplished in their field. We struck 
gold with this talent, as not only are they good 
coaches but great people to boot. Our nippers 
and parents are very lucky to have their expertise 
and enthusiasm. Gentlemen we are in debt to your 
skills, and I admire the respect our children have 
for both of you!

Nipper Carnival
North Steyne was fortunate to again hold a Branch 
Nipper carnival, this was the first carnival in the 
Northern Beaches Branch after the relaxation of 
the COVID-19 restrictions. We had 40 kids compete 
which was our biggest cohort for the season.  My 
special thanks to Sarah Lally whose enthusiasm 
got the event to happen and to all the parent and 
Club members for pitching in on the day.  

Sponsors
Money makes the World go round and Nippers 
is no different. This season we were fortunate to 
have some generous donors from Matt Grainger of 
Manly Surf school; Andrew Taylor of the Brookvale 
Bike Factory; Manly Lions club and Balgowlah 
RSL.

Presentations
We held two seperate Presentation events. The 
U6-U8 cohort received their awards on the last 

Sunday of the season while the U9-U14’s was held 
at the Surf Club on Sunday 20th March.  The “Chris 
Dooley Nipper Age Manager award” was another 
win to our Irish connection.  Congratulations to 
Jeff Morris, always in it for the long haul, well 
deserved!  Thank You! The big prize, from Brookie 
Bikes for the Chairman Awards was won by Tomi 
Crofton for the Boys and Sofia Delmar for the 
Girls -Congratulations!  Amazingly this has been 
awarded consecutively for over 25 years, thank 
you to Andrew Taylor. 

Junior Club Captains
This season our junior club captains were Ollie 
Crofton and Kaea Phillips. Both were excellent role 
models and a pleasure to work with. I was honoured 
to see them present at JLOTY Junior Life Saver 
of the Year. Although they did not win the Branch 
nomination, I was extremely proud that we were 
one of the few clubs to have two representatives. 
Emilie Morris from North Steyne won the award 
the previous season and she hosted the night 
along with her fellow winner from 20/21 and what 
an excellent ambassador for our club she is. 

For the upcoming season Eva Haughton & Charlie 
Colwell will be our Junior Club Captains. I look 
forward to their great ideas and leadership.  As 
Captains they take on the all-important position as 
role model for all Nippers. 

Competition
Well just a few years ago we had a handful of keen 
kids competing for the Club. What a difference 
good coaches and a few seasons makes.  This 
season we attended all the Branch carnivals and 
even travelled across the bridge for the Wanda 
and North Cronulla Australia Day carnivals.

For the first time in a very long time North Steyne 
entered teams in both the beach and boards All Age 
Relays at  Branch. In the board relay at the halfway 
mark North Steyne lead the field only to have no 
luck with waves. Both Curl Curl and eventually 
Manly snookered waves to come up level and pass 
us. In the beach relay we qualified for the final but 
were unfortunately disqalified, but they went within 
a whisker of a place. Great effort by our kids!   
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As for the big carnivals, North Steyne finished 
5th at Branch and 16th at State. Not bad for 30 
competitors!! I have so many good memories of 
our kids it would be unfair to single any individual.
What often makes a good club is your team 
performances and at North Steyne our Nippers 
excelled, at Branch, special mention to U12 Boys 
GOLD in the boards relay and U11 Boys GOLD 
in  the Beach Relay.  For the Mixed Team in U11, 
GOLD in the Beach relay!  At State our teams 
made the final in the U10, U11 & U12 Boys Board 
relays the girls in the U10 board relay. Our U11 
boys got Bronze in the beach relay.

Our Nippers were lucky to get some expert flag 
training in the leadup to Branch and State from 
one of our former Flag champs, Chris Pearce 
and it paid dividends. In the U11 boy’s flags North 
Steyne had 4 out of the final 5 in the Branch 
Championships. The 1 & 2 km runs are not what 
comes to mind as a Nipper event, but our kids 
roped in a stack of medals, thanks to the efforts of 
our talented parents Kristie Walker, Simon Herfort 
and Kate Stephens. 

Surf Life Saving is like no other sport, there’s 
more luck than a wombat crossing the F1, but 
competition is what makes a child. Smiles one 
minute followed by tears the next. Massive lows 
followed by massive highs, and the parents ride 
the same roller coaster, and if not enough all these 
feelings can happen in multitudes on a single day. 
Heaven help if you have 2 or 3 kids! So, it brings 

out the best in a family and it’s a bond between 
nipper families.

Branch Development Squad
Special mention to Felix Stephens and Caden 
Badstue who were selected from Nippers across all 
21 Clubs to be part of the Sydney Northern Beaches 
Junior Development Squad.  These spots are highly 
sought after and only the top competitors on the 
Peninsula are selected.  Congrats to both and their 
parents!  

Thank You’s
I personally want to congratulate every Nipper who 
wore the black and gold cap in 2021/2022.  For 
the age managers and assistants who volunteered 
every Sunday and our amazing water safety crew, 
to our SRC’s that jumped in the water and helped 
in water safety every Sunday. To the parents who 
donned an apron for BBQ’s duty. 

To the parents who took time out to help setup for 
Sundays, carnivals and State. To our photographer, 
Dave Sawyer, who took some amazing photos. You 
are all champions and are what make North Steyne 
the amazing club that it is! North Steyne SLSC is 
committed to safeguarding children and young 
people. Nippers is a team effort, take the time to 
give yourself a pat on the back. ‘See you in October 
back on the beach!  

Bernie Burrows
Junior Activity Director 
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Ripper Nippers
North Steyne SLSC’s Inclusive Beaches Program continues to be a standout in the Northern Beaches 
community. It is also an outstanding example of SLSA’s Inclusive Beaches programs that continues to be 
adopted around Australia. 

North Steyne Ripper Nippers are again supported by Balgowlah RSL through the NSW Clubs Grants, 
Manly Lions through an annual donation and generous donations from members, families and friends of 
our program. With this being our 9th season of Ripper Nippers on our beach, 30 Ripper Nippers, their 
siblings and families enjoyed a shortened season alongside their Nipper and Youth peers. 

This season was mainly on the sand due to the strong surf conditions, the weather and most unfortunately, 
the poor water quality at the end of the season. It was an unusual season, with the start date in November 
and several Rippers starting late due to COVID-19. 

We were all looking forward to honing our skills and introducing our new Rippers to participation and 
competition with the Inclusive Beaches State Titles being held on our very own beach in February. It was 
unfortunate that the storms and beach conditions brought an abrupt end to the season and the cancelling 
of the NSW Championships. It will be bigger and better next season with lots more fun.

With the fantastic support for our program from our Club and the individual dedication from our Director of 
Youth, Jodie Frazer, Jo Cooper and our Cadets, our Rippers are mentored each week and kept safe in the 
water whilst ensuring they have fun and  learn. Two of our Ripper Nipper sessions coincided with patrol 
commitments, so our Rippers received hands-on experience with equipment used on patrol, participating 
with the patrol team and learning about first aid. The Black & Gold Community continues to shine, even 
when the weather does not! 

The program also received support through the Federal Government, who provided a grant for an 
equipment trailer and our local Member for Warringah, Zali Steggall OAM, attending Rippers events and 
award ceremonies. 

The Ripper Nipper Presentation event at Balgowlah RSL in May was the opening act for the Main Awards 
Night and was well attended by many Rippers, their siblings and families. Rippers were  presented with 
this season’s trophies.  Our President, Chris Gibbs Stewart, Zali Steggall OAM, MP for Warringah, Michael 
Regan, Mayor of Sydney Northern Beaches, Balgowlah RSL President Graham Stone with Directors Des 
McAteer, John Garland and Dave O’Brien, Manly Lions Nigel Jeny OAM and Caroline Holdstock as well as 
our Patrons Jean Hay AM and David Hay, all took part in the presentations and photos.

On the night, Manly Lions donated two soft rescue boards and Balgowlah RSL a soft rescue board for our 
water safety for use by our Cadets undertaking their SRC and working with our Rippers. Thank you, Manly 
Lions and Balgowlah RSL! Again, we have been able to provide the Ripper Nipper program to our Rippers 
because of the continued generous support from Balgowlah RSL, Manly Lions Club, NSW Government – 
Office of Sport, Surf Life Saving Australia, Australian Government and of course, the North Steyne SLSC 
Board and our members. We look forward to seeing you on the beach again next season. 

David “the Shark” Cowell.  
Ripper Nipper Facilitator
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Marketing Director’s Report
Following the abrupt end to our previous season, 
the 2021-2022 season will be remembered for 
getting off to a restricted start on the beach with 
many of the clubs regular programs not kicking 
off until late October and early November. The 
resilience of our members shone through with all 
our fundraising, community events and marketing 
across the club. Whilst this impacted and restricted 
our Marketing, Grants and Fundraising activities, 
there was a great level of commitment from many 
to embrace our sponsors, supporters and donors 
through events, greater use of social media and 
electronic communications. 

All the invaluable lessons from the challenges of 
this season with club programs, weather, events 
and the cancellation of the State titles mid event, 
have seen our dedicated membership, families 
and the broader community, ready for a bigger and 
better season next year.

Sponsors & Grants
NED Australian Whisky returned to sponsor the 
Open Mens surfboat crew for the Ocean Thunder 
Series as well as provide support to the other 
crews. The NED Australian Whisky Surfboat was 
prominent in many carnivals including Aussies with 
all crews utilising the boat and tents on the beach. 
This was also supported by Manly Longboard Co 
with crew clothing and the Pure Legal surfboat.

Bank of Queensland Manly, through Jodie & 
Drew Johnson, were a new sponsor to the club, 
and we welcome their involvement looking after 
the clubs general banking and Future Fund. Whilst 
there were not as many opportunities to get our 
sponsors and supporters to the club this season, 
we look forward to seeing them on the beach soon.

Manly Surf School have been a long-term 
supporter of our club who hold prominent position 
on our beach. This season they have sponsored 
the Nippers, providing the Team clothing for the 
NSW State titles as well as providing support to 
our fundraising with surf school vouchers which 
were also used by our Ripper Nippers during the 
season.

Balgowlah RSL increased its support for NSSLSC 
through the Clubs Grants NSW supporting our 
Ripper Nipper program, Nippers and youth 
programs. They also provided funding for a soft 
rescue board for our SRC/ Cadets to train and 
undertake water safety with our junior programs. 
Through the Balgowlah RSL meat raffle, our 
Nippers were provided with additional funding as 
well as The Wine Room providing prizes for our 
fundraising activities. The RSL also has prominent 
place on the boardwalk at North Steyne with the 
new tent for the BBQ on Sundays and special 
events.

Manly Lions, through 
their donation, were again 
a generous contributor 
to the Inclusive Beaches 
Program and our Ripper 
Nippers. Manly Lions 
provided their BBQ 
trailer on our beach at 
the carnivals as well as 
personnel, with the funding from these events coming 
back to our club. At the end of season awards for 
Ripper Nippers, there was also the donation of two 
soft rescue board for our SRC/ Cadets to train and 
undertake water safety with our junior programs. 
 
Building Grants
 

Work continued on building grants with the 
finalisation by Northern Beaches Council of the 
club room and hall balcony doors. This allowed 
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the club to complete the club room floor as well 
as replacing the rubber in the patrol room and 
completing the Nippers Cage. Further works are to 
be completed in the off season. We have secured a 
grant through Zali Steggall OAM, Federal Member 
for Warringah through the Powering Communities 
Grant for solar panels which combined with ResInc 
Solar sponsorship will see solar panels on the club 
roof.

Fundraising
Finally, the Club concluded the major fundraising 
activity with the Black & Gold Raffle extending over 
two seasons finally being drawn at the Christmas 
Party. The new Black and Gold Raffle commenced at 
the Award Night with the generous support of Artussi, 
Nutrimetics through Maree Bennett, Brookvale Bike 
Factory, Bennett Surfboards, The Wine Room, 
SLSA/ Demon Surfboards, Dripping Wet, Manly Surf 
School and many other prizes.

The Northern Beaches Sun Run saw almost 80 
volunteers raise funds through the provision of 
our members being course marshals, finish line 
marshals and setup/ packup of the finish line for 
the event.  This was again supported broadly from 
Nippers to Life Members and our A-Team getting up 
early to ensure this community event was again able 
to run with restrictions and be a huge success.

We look forward to again hosting events at the club 
and getting our Sponsors and Supporters back to 
the club. This will kick off with the Back to the Beach 
Events at the start of 2022-2023. We look forward 
to seeing you all on the beach for another great 
season.

Thank you to all that contributed to the Marketing 
Portfolio and fundraising throughout the season 
to ensure our Club continues to be successful. A 
special thanks to Freya O’Neill who accepted the 
challenge of Assistant Director of Marketing. Freya is 
now studying in Melbourne but assures me she will 
be back on the beach at every available opportunity.

David Cowell 
Marketing Director
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General Activities Director
The weather and on going COVID-19 restrictions have somewhat dampened 
our social activities  this year but we are delighted that the BBQ has once again 
been one of our main fundraising activities.  

We enjoyed some live music provided by our very own talented club members 
on a couple of SIPS occasions and they also kept us entertained during the 
24hour Row event,  where we had such an amazing turn out of supporters to 
raise funds for Gotcha 4 Life.  

We now have three amazing A-Teams heading up Sunday BBQ’s.  As a club we are so proud and 
appreciative of our older members who continue to give up their time once a month both on and off 
season.  The A Team, The A Plus Team and The AAA team.  There is still one weekend in each month, 
where we will be drawing on the support of club members, across the board, to help out on a BBQ shift 
of two.  To incentivise you to take part, we have the inauguration of the A Team BBQ Shield for the most 
“eggscellent” BBQ Team.  This year at our Annual Presentation Night it was won by the A Team who 
cooked up a storm and made over $4,000 on one Sunday.

The Board have been working on an upgrade 
of our Club Licence which will allow us more 
scope for hall hire and events.  I would like to 
thank Paul Mathew who has been championing 
this initiative.  Paul and a team of club members 
with RSA’s also ran the sponsored bar and VIP 
area for the Sydney Surf Pro which made the 
club some nice additional revenue.  My thanks to 
all those and to Paul  and the team for working 
on this event.

The Club Hall and Club Room are both now 
looking fresh with a lovely coat of paint to brighten 
them up. Don’t forget, as club members you can 
hire out either of these venues for functions and 
events.  Just go onto the Club website and click 
Venue Hire for more details.  We continue to hire 
the hall out for various yoga and exercise classes which give us a tidy income. 
 
Like most not for profit and volunteer organisations, North Steyne relies on sponsorship, both in financial 
as well as in kind donations.  I would like to acknowledge and thank our sponsors who generously assist us 
in so many ways.  The Balgowlagh RSL, especially for our end of season event and the community meat 
raffles, and the Lions Club have been wonderful with their support of the BBQ at our carnivals.

I would like to thank and acknowledge the efforts of Liv Pennie, Assistant Director for this season. Liv has 
brought a focus and enthusiasm for social promotion of the club.  I am sure members will also join me in 
thanking her for all the hours behind the bar Liv puts in.  We are especially loving the new North Steyne 
Stubby Coolers.  If you and some friends are interested at all in getting involved with events and social 
activities, please contact us.  We would love to hear your ideas for new social initiatives or fundraising 
events.

Finally, next season will kick off on 10th September with our pre-season warm up party at the Balgowlagh 
RSL.  It will be our first fundraiser for the season.  The classic Sydney rock band, The Interceptors will be 
playing and you will be assured of an entertaining evening with music, auctions, dancing and food.  All 
funds raised will go to the club to support our lifesaving activities.  

Claire Oxlade
General Activities Director





	 North Steyne Surf Lifesaving Club Inc. 	 ABN 99 734 830 191				    115th Annual Report | Page 30	

Surf Sports Director’s Report
patrolling member and 
competitor. It is always 
wonderful to have our 
younger members in 
support role at carnivals 
and thanks always to Jon 
Colwell who steps up to be 
our team manager. This 
increase in members for 
our Master’s cohort was 
evident in the overall results, with North Steyne 
placing second across Branch for this season 
(compared to last season where we placed 12th 
in the Masters division).  

Special mention to Jack Watt who stepped out 
of his comfort zone to represent North Steyne at 
Open water carnivals this season including Manly 
and Freshwater. 

Lifesaving Events
North Steyne continues to be a strong lifesaving 
team across SNB branch. This season, Emma 
Winter, Emilie Morris and Oli Crofton joined the 
team to compete in Champion Lifesaver, U15 and 
U14 respectively. In a short time these younger 
members improved their lifesaving skills, showed 
up to every training session and excelled at 
Branch Championships with Oli Crofton claiming 
second place. 

Our seasoned competitors, Deb Foote, Shannon 
Job, Kyra Jenkins, Sarah Lally and Jack Watt 
all finished with medal placings. This season 
our Open Patrol Team claimed gold at Branch 
Championships against Freshwater, Newport and 
Manly. 

Aussies 2022
Thank you to the executive for supporting the Surf 
Sports on their campaign at Aussies on the Gold 
Coast. We had 35 people all up representing the 
Black and Gold across Lifesaving and Surf Boats.

Despite cancellation of State Championships, 
North Steyne competitors were selected for 
Aussies for both Champion Lifesaver and Open 

This season has been challenging with some 
curveballs thrown our way – covid, floods, rain, 
more rain add a tsumani warning & la nina. Not 
all the planned carnivals were able to be run, 
however, we had some huge achievements this 
season for our competitors and general members. 

First up this portfolio has had a rebrand – from 
Competition to Surf Sports. Surf sports is so much 
more than competing and winning medals – it 
represents the community and friendships formed 
within the Club. I know for myself, and with others, 
being able to lean in and reach out to our surf club 
friends during the long lockdowns was a lifeline 
and there is something magical about coffee and 
chats in the sun after our time out in the water. 

Carnivals hosted by North Steyne 
North Steyne is reputable for the amazing 
carnivals we host in branch. The Australia Day 
Carnival will now be known as The North Steyne 
Boat Carnival. And of course, the nipper carnival is 
always the first big water carnival for the season. 
This would not be possible without our members 
who put their hands up to help; first aid, set up 
and pack down and its always a chance for us to 
put on display our exceptional water safety skills 
under the guidance of IRB Captain, Dave Guthrie.  
Thank you so much. Not only are these events 
a big fundraiser for our club but also the positive 
impact it has on our branch and club. 

Masters & Opens 
Sunday morning training sessions have continued 
to grow in numbers, and it has been great to 
see member’s get out of their comfort zones 
and dust off a racing board and give it a go. Our 
Masters beach competitors joined with Queenscliff 
beachies for combined training sessions. 

Tim Platt returned and several members pulled 
on their competition cap for the first time. 
Despite the limited number of masters Carnivals 
this season, our team excelled in Branch 
Championships (and had a record number of 
competitors entered for State), the first time in 
about ten years we had a female Taplin team, 
and beach relay teams for both male and female!  
It has been wonderful to see many members 
transition from being a nipper parent to an active 
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for their support with officiating, starting and water 
safety.

Club Champions
Male Female

U17 Sam Chubb Lexi Landrak
Open Jack Watt Kyra Jenkins
30 – 39yrs Adam Traugott Sarah Lally
40 – 49yrs Chris Haughton Lou Lou Stanley
50 – 59yrs Niels Thelosen Eve Killick
60 – 69yrs Tim Platt Deb Foote

I personally would like to thank those who have 
supported me during this season. The amazing 
Patrol Competition team who have always been 
there for me a lot through the season, listen to 
my ideas and will show up for training and spend 
hours and hours in isolation with me when it’s 
the last thing they feel like doing – Lachie, Kyra, 
Shannon, Jack and Deb – thank you. Also special 
thanks to Niels who has been a pillar of support 
this season and never blinks an eyelid when 
I ask for his help to fix boards, bring his electric 
screwdriver or go for a swim in the middle of winter!  

Thank you also to Ally Stirling for being a great 
Boat Captain and for assisting with the social 
media communications for the club. Thanks to all 
the members for a wonderful 2021/2022 season. 
Stay safe and see you on the beach. 

Sarah Lally 
Surf Sports Director

Patrol Competition. Shannon Job defended his 
gold medal, and Sarah Lally brought home a 
bronze in masters champion lifesaver, Deb Foote 
(4th) and Jack Watt (9th) in Champion Lifesaver 
and Open Patrol Competition team placed 8th. 
Many thanks to Deb for all her mentoring and 
coaching for the Lifesaving Team this season. 

Our Master’s Mens Surfboat crew, The Watermen 
finished 4th at Aussies – an amazing achievement 
for a crew that had not rowed in close to nine years 
together. A wonderful way for Sweep Col Stanford 
to finish in his retirement year.

Officials & Water Safety
Every time we show up and compete for North 
Steyne at carnivals, we owe a huge thank you to 
our Officials, we would not be able to compete 
if it wasn’t for them. Officiating can be long and 
at times, they end up dehydrated and hungry 
standing in the sun or wind or rain most of the 
day.  Many thanks to our officials who do all of 
this in a voluntary capacity, we appreciate each 
and everyone of you: Jo Cooper, Jodie Frazer, 
Shannon Job, Deb Foote, Keith Abraham, Alex 
Salier, Tim Laurence, and the nipper parents who 
officiate for the nipper carnivals. 

The Water carnivals would not be able to run 
without those who put up their hand to do 
Water Safety in the IRB as Drivers and Crew at 
Freshwater Open Carnival and Branch Champs at 
North Curl Curl. I would like to acknowledge and 
thank Pieter Marias, Antonio Remedies, Michael 
Rees-Evans and Nick Perry. 

Club Championships
Our club champs occurred, without beach events, 
to the joy of many but disappointed by the younger 
members. We were fortunate that the water 
conditions had cleared up and the sun was out for 
a great turnout. 

This year marked the second time running the 
much-contested Patrol team relay with Patrol 2, 
under the leadership of Mark Stewart taking out 
the win. This event is becoming a great way to 
mark the end of the Surf Sports season. Thanks to 
Frank Traugott, Keith Abraham and David Guthrie 
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All boat rowers at North Steyne should be proud of 
this past season. It started with no access to boats 
or gym due to COVID-19  restrictions. Dedicated 
members trained at home. When restrictions 
eased, rowing machines were used in the boat 
shed and training returned to normal when the 
club reopened.  

Time was spent on youth development with four 
U19 women, six U23 women, two U19 men, three 
U23 men as well as six Open men, four Open 
women, and 12 Masters men and women.  It was 
great to see Bushrangers (Master’s Men) and 
Watermen (Master’s men) pull on their competition 
caps and enter some carnivals this season and the 
return of the Penguins (Masters women).

The A crew (The NEDs), included Sweep 
David Maguire, Matthew Gertenbach, Michael 
Bernerius, Scott Woodward, Oscar Cowell and 
Piers Haskard. With decades of international and 
domestic experience from flat water rowing, the 
crew had to master ocean rowing. The team built 
to be finals contenders in almost every elimination/
finals rounds they entered meaning they were in 
the top 15 Open A crews in Australia.  

Highlights included rowing down the current 
national champions to finish 3rd at the Freshwater 
Carnival; competing in the finals at North Steyne; 
and rowing in 10ft plus surf at Kirra QLD. 
This crew (with the support of U23 men) also 
competed in Ocean Thunder this season which 
was made possible through the sponsorship from 
NED Australian Whisky.  Thanks also to Manly 
Longboard Co. for keeping the crew looking the 
part with new branded clothing.

The Australian Surf Rowers League (ASRL) event 
at Elouera Beach this season was as big as the 
Australian Championships. Our Masters women 
came fourth in the 180+  division.  Overnight 
horrendous conditions developed. Our nervous 
U23 women got off the beach like champions 
and caught the wave of the day to record their 

North Steyne Surf Boats
first win in a competition, eventually making the 
quarterfinals. Our U23 men made it to the semi-
finals againt the best crews in Australia. Our 
NEDs crew made it to the finals day in horrendous 
surf and beat crews that have won the Australian 
Championships. Our Open women’s crew 
(Nedettes) swept by Col Stanford, Ally Stirling, 
Sophie Egden, Antea Crevlin, and Laura with 
reserve Alex Salier performed well, but were 
unlucky not to proceed to finals day. 

It’s a dream of many crews at clubs around 
Australia to make a final or even finals day in any 
division. It takes dedication, hard training, surf 
skills, diligence and perseverance. The ASRL 
was such a wonderful event to see all the North 
Steyne crews competing against the best crews 
at the highest level.

At ‘Aussies’ our Masters men The Watermen, 
pictured above, came 4th in the 200+ men 
division, a fantastic achievement especially for 
Col Stanford in his retirement year.  Our Masters 
women, The Penguins, came 6th in the 180+ 
women’s division. They did us proud!

The Penguins formed late November 2021, Kate 
Munroe, Steph Stoddard, Melinda Akehurst (from 
Avalon) and Bastien Wallace (from Bronte), 
swept by David Maguire, had a brilliant  season 
together in spite of disruptions which included 
racing cancellations for a tsunami warning at 
the Queenscliff Carnival, a shark incident near  
Elouera impacting the ASRL Masters’ Day 
and flooding interrupting the State titles. They 
won silver at Branch, contested the ASRL with 
substitutes and were the only crew to make 
the alternate State racing. Like most crews, the 
Penguins were affected by COVID-19 but made it 
through to Aussies.  

The U23 men’s crew, The Outlaws swept by  
David Maguire, Nick Perry, Oscar Cowell, Pieter 
Marais and Zac Alford (replacing Ross Downey) 
came together at the end of last season. They 
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started well making it into the finals at Freshwater. 
Plagued by COVID-19 and lack of availability, the 
crew struggled until Zac came to the rescue. They 
placed second in a race at Queenscliff competing 
against Australian Champion crews.They made 
the finals at North Steyne, won a heat at the ASRL 
event and 4th in the semi-finals, beaten by three 
state representative crews who later took out the 
medals. At Aussies they won a heat against the 
best in Australia, but were unable to proceed to 
the finals after a harsh cut.  Congratulations to 
Oscar Cowell awarded Boat Rower of the Year. 
Oscar stepped up to also be part of the NED 
crew, his skills as an oarsman have improved 
significantly. 

Our U23 women (Shenanigans) of Chloe 
Woodward, Sarah Kinghorn, Olivia Kehoe, Abbey 
Hillier, and reserves Pip Rees-Evans, Emilia 
Cimino, with Sweep David Maguire, got great 
experience representing the Club at the Australian 
Young Guns Junior Surfboat Championships at 
Collaroy, the ASRL event and at Aussies.  

A highlight of the season was the Gotcha4Life 
24hour row event organised by our Boat Captain, 
Ally Stirling to raise money for mental health.  It 
was an outstanding success and an awesome 
way to bring the community together at the start 
of the season.  From Life Members to Cadets, 
with Surfboat crews and their friends and family, 
raising nearly $8000 for the cause.  Founder Gus 
Worland, pictured below with Ally, popped in to 
encourage the rowers to keep going, and show 
his support. 

It has been a big season overall, with Boaties 
helping at BBQs, carnival set-ups, pack-downs, 
officiating and enjoying supporting other crews 
throughout the season.  A huge thanks to David 
for all the super early starts, boat and equipment 
wrangling, to all our supporters and NED 
Australian Whisky for a great season. 

North Steyne Surfboat Crews.



Australian Championships Results
Gold Shannon Job 30-39 Male Champion Lifesaver 

Bronze Sarah Lally 30-39 Female Champion Lifesaver 

4th Deb Foote 50+ Female Champion Lifesaver 
4th The Watermen: Damian O’Shannassy, Mark Ballesty, 

Bill McClerg, Darren Gore, Col Stanford
200yrs Male Surfboat 

6th
The Penguins: Kate Munro, Bastien Wallace, Melinda 
Akehurst, Stephanie Stoddard, Sweep: Dave Maguire

180yrs Female Surfboat 

8th
Shannon Job, Kyra Jenkins, Jack Watt, Sarah Lally, 
Lachlan Van Der Pluijm, Deb Foote

Open Patrol Competition

9th Jack Watt Open Male Champion Lifesaver 

Branch Championships Results
Gold Medals
Sarah Lally 35-39 Female Board
Erin Colwell, Chloe Butcher, Sarah Lally 110yrs Female Board relay
Tim Platt 65-69 Male Beach Sprint
Kristie Walker 35-39 Female Beach Sprint
Tim Platt 65-69 Male Beach Flags
Lou Lou Stanley 45-49 Female Beach Flags
Simon Herfort 40-44 Male 2km Run
Kristie Walker 35-39 Female 2km Run
Caroline Yarnell 60-64 Female 1km Run
Shannon Job 30-39 Male Champion Lifesaver
Sarah Lally 30-39 Female Champion Lifesaver
Deb Foote 50+ Female Champion Lifesaver
K Jenkins, J Watt, S. Job, L. Van Der Pluijm, S. Lally, D. Foote Open Patrol Competition
Masters crew -The Bushrangers  Peter Landsey,  
Col Stanford, Dan Hillier, Brian Baker, Richard Donaldson

240yrs Male Surfboat

Silver Medals
Simon Herfort 40-44 Male Board Race
Lou Lou Stanley 45-49 Female Board Race
Deb Foote 60+ Female Board Race
Lou Lou Stanley, Deb Foote,  Caroline Yarnell 170yrs Female Board Relay
Craig Shadbolt 45-49 Male Beach Sprint
Sarah Lally 35-39 Female Beach Sprint
Dan Hillier 45-49 Male Beach Flags
Erin Colwell, Chloe Butcher, Sarah Lally 110yrs Female Taplin
Lou Lou Stanley 45-49 Female Surf Race
Deb Foote 60-64 Female Surf Race
Jack Watt Open Male Champion Lifesaver
Kyra Jenkins Open Female Champion Lifesaver
Masters crew - Penguins Kate Munro, Bastien Wallace, 
Mel Akehurst, Stephanie Stoddard, Sweep David Maguire

180yr Female Surfboat

Bronze Medals
Simon Herfort 40-44 Male Beach Sprint
Dan Hillier 45-49 Male Beach Sprint
Simon Herfort, Dan Hillier, Tim Platt, Craig Shadbolt Male Beach relay
Lou Lou Stanley 45-49 Female Beach Sprint
Sarah Lally, Lou Lou Stanley, Kristie Walker, Caroline 
Yarnell

170yrs Female Beach relay

Lou Lou Stanley 45-49 Female 2km Run
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North Steyne Awards 2021 - 2022

George Morgan Memorial Shield 
Clubperson of the Year Shannon Job

Young Clubperson of the Year Lachlan Van der Pluijm

Presidents Award Jack Watt

Philip Hodson Memorial Trophy 
Patrolperson of the Year Mark Stewart

Br Ross Downard Memorial 
Captain’s Trophy David Guthrie

Captain’s Patrol Captain: Paul Mathew VC: Tim Platt, ART Roisin Tumilty, IRB Driver Michael  
Altenburger, IRB Crew Craig Shadbolt, Senior Patrol Members Alex Salier and  
Jon Holman, Junior Patrol Members: Emma Winter and Sam Chubb,  
SRC’s Kaea Phillips and Charlie Gordon

Peter Logan Memorial Shield 
Best First Year Bronze Holder Evelyn Killick

Neil Newton Memorial Trophy 
Volunteer of the Year Claire Oxlade

Vanessa Anderson Memorial Shield Emilie Morris

Chris Dooley Age Manager of Year Jeff Morris

Joe Jenkins Memorial  A award Oscar Cowell

Garry O’Sullivan Trophy 
Training Officer of the Year Jodie Frazer

Keith Abraham Trophy 
Assessor of the Year Richard Donaldson

Best Senior Patrolman Danny Gompes

Best Junior Patrolman Antonio Remedios

Best Senior Patrolwoman Jodie Frazer

Best Junior Patrolwoman Emilie Morris

Best IRB Driver Brian Mariotti

Best IRB Crew Craig Shadbolt

Founders Cup 
Most Oustanding in Swimming & Lifesaving Activities

Shannon Job

Eric Morgan Memorial 
Best & Fairest in Competitor R&R or Surf Swimming

Sarah Lally

Clem Susans Memorial Trophy 
Best Boatman

Oscar Cowell
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George Webb Memorial Trophy 
Patrol of the Year

Patrol 5 Captain: Lachlan Van der Pluijm, VC Brian Mariotti, Antonio  
Remedios, Samuel Chubb, Matthew Riordan, Analiese Treacy-Ruane, 
Caroline Yarnell, Harley Van der Pluijm, Sienna Wessels, Jessica  
Marshall, Isabella Havryk

North Steyne Awards Continued...
Rastus Evans Memorial Trophy 
Most Outstanding Surfboat Crew

Male Masters: The Watermen:  Mark Ballesty, Darren Gore, Bill Mc-
Lerie, Damian O’Shannassy, Sweep Colin Stanford

Maud Druitt Trophy 
Most Outstanding Team

Open Patrol Comp team: Deb Foote, Kyra Jenkins, Shannon Job, 
Sarah Lally , Lachlan Van der Pluijm, Jack Watt

Masters Competitor of the Year Deb Foote

Open Competitor of the Year Jack Watt

Under 19 Competitor of the Year Pieter Marais

Under 15 Competitor of the Year Oli Crofton



Year	 Event	 Names
1999-2000	 50-54 Beach Sprint	 P Crombie
1999-2000	 130+ Beach Relay Team	 P Crombie, P Gilmore, C Kearney					   

Australian Champions
Year	 Event	 Names
1908-09	 Premiers (R & R)	 R McKelvey, C Bell, G Millar, J Vernon, O Merrett, LV Hind, A Currie

1909-10	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell

1910-11	 Premiers (R & R)	 A Currie, J Vernon, O Merrett, L Hind, G Millar, H Watson, C Bell

1919-20	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, A Davis, A Hodge, W Keith, H Middleton, E Whitehead

	 Open Belt	 F Lough

1920-21	 Premiers (R & R)	 L Hind, H Evans, A Davis, N Lister, E Whitehead, H Middleton

	 Open Boat	 E Wigney, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn

	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer

1921-22	 Open Boat	 H Evans, F Dargan, G Moat, A Stewart, A Thorn

	 Open Surf	 AL Davis

	 Resuscitation	 R Kidman, G Riddington

1922-23	 Junior Surf	 R Nicholls

1923-24	 Junior Surf	 D Thompson

	 Open Boat	 H Evans, E Saunders, P Mazlin, O Stephenson, F Stewart

	 Beach Sprint	 J Waterer

	 Beach Relay	 J Waterer, H Gorfin, C Whitehead, E Whitehead

1925-26	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, P Mazlin, O Stephenson

	 Junior Boat	 S Kelly, A Wise, E Ireland, H Morgan, L Waterer

1926-27	 Premiers (R & R)	 G Bland, D Thompson, O Ryan, G Boulton, D Riddington, E Whitehead

	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazelin, G Moat, F Bridges

1928-29	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, G Moat, F Bridges, F Vaughan

1929-30	 Open Boat	 H Evans, S Kelly, P Mazlin, J Milne, M Vaughan

	 Beach Sprint	 R Conn

1930-31	 Beach Relay	 R Conn, N Walters, J Carter, J Gosson

1932-33	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, J Megson

1933-34	 Beach Relay	 D Souter, G Souter, J Carter, R Geary

1938-39	 Premiers (R & R)	 E Morgan, S Paton, A Owen, W Furey, R Mullumby, B Lilley, A Durrell, G Souter

1940-41	 Junior Belt	 IK Kennington

1945-46	 Junior R & R	 A Coore, B Smith, D Page, J Ashley, D Stewart, G Anderson, D Anderson

	 Junior Teams	 J Ashley, A Coore, B Smith, B Hawkeswood

	 Junior Surf	 J Ashley

	 Junior Belt	 A Coore

1963-64	 Junior R & R	 A Kennington, G Day, A Simon, G Murcutt, G Maloney, E Wise,  
		  P Tocchini, I Byrne, T O’Donnell

1986-87	 Junior Flags	 G Monckton

	 Junior Relay	 G Monckton, A O’Dwyer, A Pettit, D Nable, P Hogg

1989-90	 Open Boat	 R Burgess, D O’Shannassy, D Hoy, A Watt, A Hayward

2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Sprint	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal

2005-06	 u19 Female Beach Relay	 Charlotte Van Veenendaal, Erin Lee, Annabelle Ewen, Alice Wilson

2009-10	 Masters 40-44 2km Run	 Kevin Ferry

2013-14	 u17 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan

2013-14	 Open First Aid Team	 Melissa Clark, Joseph Mastrangelo III

2015-16	 u19 Female Champion Lifesaver	 Courtney Sloan

2020-21	 Masters Champion Lifesaver	 Shannon Job								      

2021-22	 Masters Champion Lifesaver	 Shannon Job

World Champions
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Patrol Hours 2021 - 2022
Alford Zachary 23.25
Altenburger Michael 49.75
Anderson John 18
Auld Hunter 23.25
Auld Maya 18.75
Barriscale Cillian 28
Basil-Jones Stephen 18.5
Bell Julia 13.75
Bennett Lachlan 35.25
Benns Matthew 40.75
Bernerius Michael 11.25
Birch Ross 9
Birley Joshua 11.75
Birley Matthew 11.75
Black Larnach 16.25
Brady Francesca 4.75
Brandson Kai 26.75
Brant Roger 41.75
Brown Jeffrey 22.5
Burns Mark 31.25
Burrows Bernard 22.25
Butcher Chloe 9
Button Colleen 42.5
Chapman Rebecca 4.75
Chatfield Andrew 20.75
Chubb Samuel 36.75
Cimino Emilia 48
Clare Hanna 4.25
Collins William 17.5
Colwell Erin 36
Colwell Jonathan 39.25
Cooper Joanne 59.25
Cooper-Frater Ewan 36
Cowell David 50.5
Cowell Oscar 33.5
Crofton Oliver 36.5
Crofton Stuart 37

Crvelin Antea-Allegra 4.75
Delaney Jai 27.5
Delaney Luka 32.75
Delmar Monet 4.25
Dequidt Capucine 8.75
Donaldson Richard 35.75
Downey Ross 13.25
Egden Sophie 53

Eslick Marielle 25.25
Falzarano Ella 21.5
Falzarano Tonino 31.25
Farrell Evelyn 40.25
Farrell Sean 4.25
Faulk Charlotte 13.75
Filmer Annabel 36.5
Flynn Daniel 37.75
Foote Deborah 43.75
Ford Dylan 23.25
Frazer Jodie 95.25
Galt Alice 22.25
Gertenbach Matthew 18
Gibbeson Dan 18
Gibbs Stewart Christine 56.5
Gompes Danny 49.25
Gordon Charlie 22.75
Gordon Luke 45.75
Greenhalgh Nick 27
Griffiths Toby 18
Gunton Tom 16.5
Guthrie David 98.5
Hamer Sophie 7.25
Hamer Thomas 4.75
Hare Mechelle 52
Haskard Piers 18
Hassell James 45
Haughton Chris 56.5
Havryk Isabella 16.25
Hearn David 50.5
Heffernan Caitlin 26
Henzlik Kirk 29.75
Herbert Jack 43.25
Herbert Peter 39
Herfort Simon 56.5
Hillier Abbey 51.25
Hillier Daniel 79.25
Hillier Edward 41.75
Hillier Emma 46
Hogan Harrison 36
Hogan Sienna 7.75
Holman Jonathan 64.5
Jenkins Kyra 150.5
Jenkins Llewellyn 8.5
Job Shannon 25.75

Kasalo Mia 26.95
Kasalo Tiana 29
Kehoe Dara 22.75
Kehoe Olivia 19.25
Kehoe Rory 31.25
Kilgour Peta 6
Killick Evelyn 29.5
Kinghorn Andrew 37
Kinghorn Rachel 20
Kinghorn Sarah 31.5
Kirchner Mick 4.25
Lally Sarah 69.75
Landrak Lexie 34.5
Landsey Peter 4.75
Leafe Samuel 4.25
Leong Stephen 4.75
Litchfield Ted 34.5
Macintyre Rory 49
Maddox Mark 69.5
Maguire David 69
Maher Brendan 21.5
Maher Zoe 22.25
Mahon Emma 6.75
Mansfield Bruce 45
Marais Pieter 21.75
Mariotti Brian 60
Mariotti Emmett 27.5
Marshall Jessica 8
Martinez Natasha 2
Mason Greer 18.5
Matheson Hamish 4.75
Mathew Paul 101
McCloskey Aaron 9
Mcewen Charles 6.58
McEwen Douglas 9
McGlashan Joanna 16.25
Miklis Max 13.5
Mooney Kieran 43.25
Morris Emilie 31
Muller Lukas 28
Munro Kate 9
Neighbour Mark 8.5
O'Farrell Andrew 21
O'Neill Freya 28
O'Neill Jodie 16.75
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O'Neill Shane 43.75
O'Reilly Jessica 34.25
O'Shannassy Damian 4.75
Oxlade Claire 42.25
Paddison Sophie 11.25
Paine Natasha 13.75
Parker Molly 21.75
Parren Alec 43.5
Parry Ben 23.25
Pea-
cock-Smith Maxine 18
Peake Malcolm 45.5
Perry Nicholas 25
Phillips Kaea 8.17
Pittar Annica 7.67
Platt Chloe 25
Platt Edward 66.75
Ramsey-Stewart Euan 7
Rees-Evans Michael 8
Rees-Evans Pip 13.25
Reidy Michael 43.25
Remedios Antonio 81.25
Richardson Frazer 76.25
Richardson Rose 36
Riordan Matthew 46.5
Sakauchi Akari 29.75
Salier Alexandra 45
Schmidt Maddi 32.5
Shadbolt Craig 56.5
Shea Casey 4.75
Silberberg Angela 46
Silberberg Caroline 4.75
Silberberg Desmond 36.5
Silberberg Natalie 28
Small Xavier 23.25
Stanley Lou Lou 71.25
Stewart Mark 105.25
Stirling Alexandra 22.75
Swann Phoenix 13.75
Szewczak Robert 23.75
Takeda Riana 4.25
Tetley Sophie 22.75
Thelosen Niels 61.25
Tompson Eva 27.5
Townsend James 59.42
Townsend Jonathan 38

Townsin-Brant Oskar 43.5
Traugott Frank 58
Treacy-Ruane Analiese 38.5
Tucker Kathryn 34.25
Tumilty Roisin 43
Turner Scott 41.75
Unicomb David 2
Van der Pluijm Harley 28.25
Van der Pluijm Lachlan 77.5
Van Dyck Mark 11.25
Wait Fraser 6.5
Wait Jessica 4.75
Wait Leslie 14.25
Wait Maxwell 4.75
Wait Thomas 25
Walker Kristie 22.75
Wallace Bastien 4.25
Wallis Connor 6.5
Wallis Riley 6.5
Walton Cerys 26.5
Walton Maya 28
Watt Jack 87.25
Wessels Sienna 9
Wheen Liam 40.25
Wilde Rob 24.75
Williams Dave 30
Winter Emma 25.75
Wong Kyle 45
Woodward Chloe 20.5
Woodward Scott 20
Yarnell Caroline 36
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SLS Sydney Northern Beaches
     The Sydney Northern Beaches Branch Awards of 

Excellence were held on Friday 17th June at Dee 
Why RSL Club. Congratulations to all the winners 
across the Peninsula.

North Steyne was awarded the Lionel McDonald 
OAM Shield for open Branch handicap point 
score. Congratulations to all our competitors as 
they contributed to this win by being the most 
improved club in carnivals out of all the clubs 
on the Northern Beaches. A great achievement 
indeed!

We are also very proud of Emilie Morris who was 
Highly Commended as Youth Volunteer of the 
year. Emilie is always helping around the Club 
and involved with the Junior Lifesaver of the Year 
program at Branch. Well done, Emilie.

We also nominated Jack Watt for Life Saver of 
the Year and Lachie Van der Plujm for Young Life 
Saver of the Year. While they did not take out the 
awards, their nominations were well deserved, 
and we thank them for all their terrific work at the 
Club over the season. 

Chris Gibb Stewart 
Club President
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NOTICE OF THE 115TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
SEASON 2021/2022 

 

Notice is hereby given that the One Hundred and Fifteenth Annual General Meeting of the North Steyne Surf Life Saving 
Club Inc. will be held in the clubhouse on Sunday 17th July 2022 commencing at 11:00am. 

AGENDA 
1. Welcome by the President. 
2. Apologies. 
3. A minute’s silence in tribute to the recent loss of members and friends within the surf lifesaving community. 
4. Approval of the Minutes for: 

a. 114th Annual General Meeting held by zoom on Sunday 8th August 2021; and 
b. Special General Meeting held in the clubhouse on Saturday 11th December 2021. 

5. Presentation and approval of the 115th Annual Report and Financial Statements. 
6. Notice of Motion: - “That Deborah Foote be elected to Life Membership”. 

Proposed: Kyra Jenkins  Seconded:  Sarah Lally 
7. Notice of Motion: - “That Frank Traugott be elected to Life Membership”. 

Proposed: David Cowell  Seconded: Tony Falzarano 
8. Presentation of Awards. 
9. Affiliation with SLS Sydney Northern Beaches Branch: “That affiliation be sought for the season with Surf Life 

Saving Sydney Northern Beaches Inc. (Branch). Further, that the articles, constitution, by-laws, regulations and 
resolutions, together with the awards and equipment at the Branch, Surf Life Saving NSW and Surf Life Saving 
Australia Limited be accepted without limitation.” 

10. Election and confirmation of Patrons, Directors (11), Assistant Directors (9), Judiciary Panel (4), Life Membership 
and Honours Panel (4), Rules Panel (4), Trustees and Auditor season 2022/2023. 

11. General business (written advice required one week prior to meeting). 

Nominations for Directors, Assistant Directors, Panels, Patrons and Trustees will be accepted in writing by the Secretary 
up until 11am on Sunday 10th July 2022. Nomination forms are available from North Steyne’s Administration Manager 
(admin@northsteyneslsc.com.au) and circulated with this notice. They are also available on North Steyne’s website. 

Members entitled to vote and stand for office are determined in Part 2 Section 5 of the North Steyne SLSC Constitution, 
consistent with SLSA Regulation 6.4 (to source - search SLSA Regulation 6.4and download the PDF). Members entitled to 
vote under the Regulation are Active members, Active Reserve members, Long Service members and Life Members who 
are financial members of the Club. 

Frank Traugott 
Secretary North Steyne SLSC 
0403 820 645 
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Treasurer’s Report
I am pleased to present the Financial Reports for 2022 for North Steyne SLSC on 
behalf of the Board of Directors.

The Club had another strong financial year, posting a net surplus of $79,502. 
This results in us increasing our accumulated earnings to $637k (before special 
purpose funds). Within our Balance Sheet equity, we also made our largest year-
end contribution to the Club’s Future Fund in several years, taking our balance 
to circa $250,000. This result was driven by a Sales (Bar, BBQ and Clothing 
Shop) increase of 4% and an Other Income increase of 22%. Both items involve 
substantial volunteer efforts from our membership, in particular running the BBQ on Sundays during the 
season and working at North Steyne’s hosted carnivals and events that have grown as a fundraising 
source over the past couple of years.

However, financial success is not simply measured in revenue and surpluses. Equally important is 
that the treasury funds the Club’s execution of its strategic goals and continues to provide equipment 
and support for members and for our core activities. This year, we spent $315,703 in total expenditure 
and additionally funded $53k of new capital expenditure, which met all sectional requests through the 
season.

Beyond the numbers, I was pleased to see increased financial discipline - particularly spend discipline - 
from the Board, whom I congratulate on delivering a positive result vs our budget at the net surplus line, 
primarily driven by judicious spending to save money where appropriate. We have begun to consolidate 
supplier relationships through our Admin Manager and this will continue into 2022-23. We also embarked 
on a campaign of “aggressive simplification” during the season, which included a shift to digital payroll 
and timesheets, a substantial reduction in the size of our chart of accounts, faster spend approvals, 
automation of our fixed asset register, and consolidation of 50% of our bank accounts.

Surf Life Saving and North Steyne SLSC have received ongoing government support and would like to 
acknowledge: 

•The NSW Government for the support of Resilience NSW for the ongoing funding of state-side 
operations, which benefit all members through our cooperative agreement. 
•The NSW Government for the support of the Office of Sport, for their support to increase usage, safety 
and participation in Surf Life Saving through ongoing programs and the Department of Communities & 
Justice Building Partnership Program.
•Federal Government for the Beach Safety Equipment Funding which directed $5,000 to every SLSC 
for the purchase of vital rescue equipment, first aid and medical supplies. 
•Federal Government for the VET Funding which enabled hundreds of assessors to update their 
training qualifications and provided clubs with updated training equipment including QCPR manikins 
and tablets. 
•The NSW and Federal Governments for its support of small organisations through JobKeeper and 
other COVID-19 grants and rebates.

The Surf Life Saving Foundation has also provided support to Surf Life Saving organisations such as 
North Steyne SLSC; please refer to our financial statements for a breakdown of our expenditure from 
total fundraising contributions this season.

Finally, I would like to acknowledge the contributions of several key people this season: George Van 
Dyck was Club Treasurer for the first half of the season before moving overseas for work and initiated 
several of the successful changes mentioned above; Cath Hillier as Admin Manager has made several 
important improvements to our financial processes and I look forward to this to continue next year;  
Tony Falzarano as previous treasurer for a thorough handover and ongoing support; Trevor Lane as our 
Honorary Auditor for continual advice throughout the season and support on our grant submissions; and 
Chris Stewart & Frank Traugott for their regular inputs and oversight of Board matters.

Shannon Job
Treasurer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 13-months ended 31 May 2022 
  Refer to notes 

to the accounts: 
F2022 F2021 

Income     
Operating income 9 109,574 117,657 
Donations & sponsorship 8 61,922 31,304 
Other fundraising activities 8 121,149 64,140 
Grants   64,289 80,253 
Government Assistance   35,250 23,500 
Interest received   3,021 5,453 
Total income   395,205 322,307 
Expenses       
Operating expenses 10 255,640 219,168 
Depreciation 7 26,491 19,874 
Fundraising activities 8 33,072 26,023 
Scholarships 6 500 500 
Special purpose fund allocations 6 0 8,933 
Total expenses   315,703 274,498 
Profit for the year   79,502 47,809 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period to 
comply with the Club’s Constitution. The figures shown for 2021 are for a 11-month period 
and hence are not directly comparable with the figures for 2022. 
 

Audited Financial Statements
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Statement of Financial Position at 31 May 2022     
  Refer to notes 

to the 
accounts: 

F2022 F2021 
Current assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 5 797,250 706,594 
Trade debtors and prepayments   9,891 21,141 
Inventory   32,354 38,711 

Total current assets   839,496 766,446 
Non-current assets       

Property, plant and equipment 7 463,103 610,497 
Less: accumulated depreciation 7 -350,223 -525,116 

Total non-current assets   112,880 85,381 
Total assets   952,376 851,827 
Current Liabilities       

Trade creditors and payables   36,199 35,909 
Deferred Income   28,230 4,980 

Total current liabilities   64,429 40,889 
Total liabilities   64,429 40,889 
Net assets   887,946 810,938 
Accumulated funds       

Special purpose funds 6 250,473 232,172 
Retained earnings   578,766 531,316 

less transfer of earnings to SPF 6 -18,301 0 
Prior year adjustment   -2,494 -359 
Current year earnings   79,502 47,809 

Total accumulated earnings   887,946 810,938 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period to 
comply with the Club’s Constitution. The figures shown for 2021 are for a 11-month period 
and hence are not directly comparable with the figures for 2022. 

 

Audited Financial Statements continued...
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Statement of Cash Flows for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
  Refer to notes to 

the accounts: 
F2022 F2021 

Cash flows from operating activities     
Cash receipts in the course of operations   447,070 305,566 
Cash payments in the course of operations  -314,124 -225,186 
Net cash flow from operating activities 11 132,946 80,380 
Cash flows from investing activities       
Receipt from sale of equipment   6,148 364 
Payment for plant and equipment   -52,797 -26,603 
Interest received   4,359 5,453 
Net cash flow from investing activities   -42,290 -20,786 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash flow   90,656 59,594 
        
Cash at beginning of the year 5 706,594 647,000 
Cash at the end of the year 5 797,250 706,594 
Net change in cash held   90,656 59,594 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting 
period to comply with the Club’s Constitution. The figures shown for 2021 are for a 11-
month period and hence are not directly comparable with the figures for 2022. 
 

 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
  Refer to notes 

to the 
accounts: 

F2022 F2021 
      
Opening Balance   810,938 754,555 

Retained Earnings  -18,301 0 
Special Purpose Funds 6 18,301 8,933 
Current Year Earnings  79,502 47,809 

Movement in Equity  79,502 56,742 
Adjustments   -2,494 -359 

Closing Balance   887,946 810,938 

 

Note: The statement of comprehensive income for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 
should be read in conjunction with the notes that accompany on the following pages. 
 
The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting 
period to comply with the Club’s Constitution. The figures shown for 2021 are for a 11-
month period and hence are not directly comparable with the figures for 2022. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the 13-month period ended 31 May 2022 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The following explains the significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation 
of the financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, such accounting policies were also adopted in 
the corresponding reporting period. 
 
General 
 
The financial report is a special purpose financial report prepared in order to satisfy the financial 
report preparation requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission and 
Charitable Fundraising Act 1991. The board has determined that the club is not a reporting entity. 
North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc (“NSSLSC”) is a not-for-profit entity for the purpose of 
preparing the financial statements. 
 
The financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Division 60 of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the following specific 
accounting policies, which are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise stated, have 
been adopted in the preparation of this report. 
 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and 
measurement requirements specified by the Australia Accounting Standards and Interpretations 
issues by the AASB and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 ‘Presentation of Financial 
Statements’, AASB 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, AASB 108 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors’, AASB 1048 ‘Interpretations of Standards’, and AASB 1054 
‘Additional Disclosures’ as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 
 
Basis of accounting 
 
The statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historic costs and do not 
take into account changing money values, or, except where stated, current valuations of non-
current assets. 
 
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 
 
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity 
and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
In F2022, NSSLSC has streamlined its expense and fixed asset accounts to organise these by 
expense type and by club section. Categorisation of expenses and fixed assets in the Notes to the 
Accounts for F2021 have been adjusted where applicable to present a like-for-like comparison. 
 
Registration fees 
 
All registration fees are bought to account in the year to which they apply as and when received 
from the members. Capitation fees, due to Surf Life Saving New South Wales Inc and Sydney 
Northern Beaches Surf Life Saving, are remitted as and when invoiced and shown as a separate 
expenditure item. 
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Donations and sponsorship income 
 
Donations & sponsorship income is recognised when amounts are received or receivable. 
 
Grants 
 
Grants are recognised in the same period as the related expense or asset is recognised. Grants 
received in advance are shown as deferred income. 
 
Government Assistance 
 
Government assistance represents JobKeeper payments and other COVID-19-based funding from 
the NSW Government. 
 
Cash at bank 
 
Cash at bank and term deposits represents monies deposited with Bank of Queensland. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories have been valued at the lower of replacement cost and net realisable value. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 
i. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost, independent of directors’ valuations. 
ii. Over the years, NSSLSC has collected considerable memorabilia. These memorabilia were 

originally recorded at a nominal value but has subsequently been fully depreciated to zero - 
hence the financial accounts do not ascribe any value to memorabilia assets 

iii. The cost of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the profit 
and loss as incurred 

iv. Depreciation rates are defined according to useful lives in NSSLSC’s Treasury Policy and for each 
major class of asset are: 

 

ASSET TYPE  EXAMPLES  USEFUL LIFE  ANNUAL 
DEPRECIATION 

BBQ and 
Bar Equipment Beer taps, fridges, BBQs  5 years  20.0% 

Board and Ski  Racing boards, skis, nipper boards 6 years  16.7% 
Gymnasium  Weights and machines  10 years  10.0% 
IRBs and Motors  IRB hulls, motors, trailer, buoys  5 years  20.0% 
IT / Entertainment  Computers, Printers, TVs  3 years  33.3% 
Lifesaving Equipment  Oxy/defib units, radios, manikins  4 years  25.0% 
Furniture and Fixtures  Lockers, furniture, installations  10 years  10.0% 
Surfboats  Boats, oars, trailers  5 years  20.0% 
Beach and Other Gear  Tents, wash-down racks, reels  4 years  25.0% 

 
 
NOTE 2 – RELATED PARTIES 
 
Transactions with committee members or their committee-member related entity occurred within 
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a normal member or supplier relationship on terms and conditions no more favourable that those 
which it is reasonable to expect that the entity would have adopted if dealing with the committee 
member or their committee-member at arms-length in the same circumstance. 
 
All key management personnel (NSSLSC Directors and Officers) are not compensated in those roles. 
 
NOTE 3 – SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
NSSLSC derives revenue primarily from its members, sponsors, and fundraising activities to support 
its role in providing beach life saving services and operations. NSSLSC’s activities are principally 
carried out at Manly Beach in NSW. 
 
NOTE 4 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
We expect the continuing COVID-19 pandemic and related restrictions will impact our operations 
substantially less than in the past 2-3 seasons. 
Our Lifesaving Services Agreement is on similar terms and levels as this past season and we continue 
to operate under the same terms and conditions as per our license agreement, now expired. 
 
NOTE 5 – RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash at the end of the reporting period, as shown in the statement of cash flows, is reconciled to the 
related item in the statement of financial positions. It includes both cash at hand and monies at bank 
and represented here: 
 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents F2022 F2021 
Cash on hand 750 950 
Cash at bank 319,897 232,241 
Bank term deposit 476,604 473,403 
Account balance 797,250 706,594 

 
 
NOTE 6 – SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS 
 
The Future Fund had its origins through donations and bequests made to NSSLSC. Its purpose is to 
provide a future means of funding and promoting surf lifesaving including purchases of lifesaving 
equipment and endeavours designed to encourage members in gaining surf lifesaving skills. 
 

Reconciliation of special purpose funds F2022 F2021 
Opening balance 232,172 223,239 
Contributions made in year 17,965 7,255 
Interest earned 835 2,178 
Expenditure -500 -500 
Account balance 250,473 232,172 

 
Transfers of funds to the Special Purpose Funds have historically been treated as an expense to 
NSSLSC’s accounts. In F22, the accounting treatment has changed to recognise approved transfers as 
an equity-to-equity transfer on the balance sheet. Hence, no amount is recognised on the Income 
Statement for F22 for Allocation to SPFs. 
 

Audited Financial Statements continued...
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NOTE 7 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 

 
 
 
NOTE 8 – FUNDRAISING STATEMENT FOR THE 13-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MAY 2022 
 
Funds were provided through the following activities and events: 
 

TYPE OF FUNDRAISING Revenue Expenses Net Surplus 
(Loss) F2022 Prior Year 

Donations 43,122 0 43,122 15,759 
Sponsorships 18,800 762 18,038 15,545 
Bar Sales 12,505 6,643 5,862 14,473 
BBQ Sales 44,812 23,519 21,293 7,670 
Carnival Hosting 24,888 582 24,306 14,981 
Ocean swim 0 1,064 -1,064 -5,434 
Hall Income 21,516 0 21,516 6,029 
Other Fundraising inc Raffles 17,428 502 16,926 397 
Total 183,071 33,072 149,999 69,421 

Note The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period. 
The figures shown for 2022 are for a 13-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 
 

Income from fundraising was applied to the following functions and activities: 
APPLICATION OF FUNDRAISING SURPLUS Amount 
Administration 8,039 
Admin Employment 13,200 
Facility Cleaning & Maintenance 26,589 
Competition 23,503 
Education 3,466 
Equipment, Consumables & Repair 30,718 
Member Clothing & Uniform 12,351 
Club Fixtures & Furniture 17,290 
Insurance 7,423 
Utilities 7,421 
Total 149,999 

ASSETS DEPRECIATION NET ASSETS
Opening 
Balance

Acquisitions Disposals Closing 
Balance

Opening 
Balance

Depreciation Disposals Closing 
Balance

Closing 
Balance

BBQ and Bar 12,558 8,736 -1,181 20,113 -2,545 -3,233 1,181 -4,596 15,517
Beach and Other Gear 1,780 0 0 1,780 -1,197 -387 0 -1,584 196
Board and Ski 154,876 8,206 -28,750 134,331 -150,851 -2,521 35,163 -118,209 16,123
Furniture and Fixtures 141,055 9,655 -111,966 38,743 -131,674 -2,288 113,347 -20,615 18,128
Gymnasium 41,992 2,080 0 44,072 -40,464 -983 96 -41,351 2,721
IRBs and Motors 109,833 12,353 0 122,186 -81,018 -7,700 729 -87,989 34,197
IT and Entertainment 5,146 4,293 -271 9,168 -4,830 -569 397 -5,002 4,167
Lifesaving Equipment 70,782 578 -43,202 28,158 -69,278 -383 42,713 -26,948 1,210
Surfboats 72,475 1,801 -9,724 64,551 -43,260 -10,566 9,895 -43,931 20,621
TOTAL 610,497 47,701 -195,094 463,103 -525,116 -28,629 203,522 -350,223 112,880
Prior Year Total 583,894 26,602 0 610,497 -505,242 -19,874 0 -525,116 85,381

ASSET TYPE 
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NOTE 9 – OPERATING INCOME 
 

  F2022 F2021 
Membership 58,550 65,418 
Clothing and merchandise sales 16,582 23,601 
Rental income (Surf School & Surfcam) 24,019 20,559 
Competition 5,924 4,037 
Training and education 3,000 3,678 
Profit on Sales of Fixed Assets 1,454 0 
Sundry income 45 364 
Total operating income 109,574 117,657 

 

Note The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period. 
The figures shown for 2022 are for a 13-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 
 

 
NOTE 10 – OPERATING EXPENSES 

  F2022 F2021 
Club Section Expenses 172,626 139,433 

Membership Expenses 58,042 39,961 
Clothing sales cost of goods sold 12,503 25,447 
Equipment, Consumables & Repairs 32,157 26,701 
Employment Expenses 66,753 46,962 
Sundry Expenses 3,171 363 

Overheads 83,013 79,735 
Administration & Stationary 8,039 7,598 
Property & Function Hosting Costs 38,737 39,838 
Capitation & Insurances 28,816 26,931 
Utilities 7,421 5,369 

Total operating expenses 255,640 219,168 

 

Note The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period. 
The figures shown for 2022 are for a 13-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 

 
  

Audited Financial Statements continued...
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NOTE 11 – CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Reconciliation of cash flow from operating activities with net profit 
  F2022 F2021 
Profit for the year 79,502 47,809 
Adjust for non-cash items     

Depreciation 26,491 19,874 
Deferred Income (increase) 23,250 -14,264 

Sub-total 129,244 53,419 
Adjust for investing activities shown separately     

Less profit on sale of fixed assets -1,454 -364 
Less interest received -3,021 -5,453 

Cash flow before movement in working capital 124,769 47,602 
Movement in:     

Trade debtors (decrease) 11,250 3,042 
Inventory (decrease) 6,357 3,386 
Trade creditors (increase) 290 17,776 
Adjustments -9,720 8,574 

Total Working Capital impact 8,177 32,778 
Net cash flow from operating activities 132,946 80,380 

 

Note The reporting period end date was changed from 30 April to 31 May this reporting period. 
The figures shown for 2022 are for a 13-month period and hence are not directly 
comparable with the figures for 2021. 
 
Adjustments for F2022 are primarily Bar Sales collected on behalf of Surfing NSW 
for the NSW Surfing Pro in May 2022, not yet paid out at year-end. 
Adjustments for F2021 are primarily the Special Purpose Fund transfer in April 
2021, recorded as an expense in the last year comparatives. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Members of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc. 

 
Opinion 

 
I have audited the financial report of North Steyne Surf Life Saving Club Inc., (“NSSLSC”), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 May 2022, the statement of 
comprehensive income and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes 
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the 
statement of members of the committee. 

 
In my opinion, the accompanying financial report of NSSLSC is in accordance with Division 60 of 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including: 

 
a) giving a true and fair view of NSSLSC’s financial position as at 31 May 2022 and of 

its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 
b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 

and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission 
Regulation 2013. 

 
I also report that in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and Charitable 
Fundraising Regulations. 

 
a) the accounting and associated records have been properly kept during the year. 
b) monies received as a result of fundraising appeals conducted during the year 

have been properly accounted for and applied; and 
c) at the date of this report there are reasonable grounds to believe the club will be 

able to pay its debts as and when they fall due. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Report section of my report. I am independent of the Club in accordance with 
the auditor independence requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) that are relevant 
to my audit of the financial report in Australia. I have also fulfilled my other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

 
I confirm that the independence declaration required by Division 60 of the Australian Charities 
and Not-for- profits Commission Act 2012, which has been given to the directors, would be in 
the same terms if given as at the time of this auditor’s report. 

 
I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 

 
Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 

 
I draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The 
financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the financial reporting 
responsibilities under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. As a 
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result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. My opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

 
 

Responsibilities of Management and the Directors’ for the Financial Report 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the special purpose financial report that 
gives a true and fair view in accordance with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards in 
accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for profits Commission Regulations 2013, 
the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, the Charitable Fundraising 
Act 1991 and Charitable Fundraising Regulations and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the special purpose financial report, management is responsible for assessing 
NSSLSC’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate NSSLSC or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 
The directors of NSSLSC are responsible for overseeing NSSLSC’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 

 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial report. 

 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also: 

 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Club’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am 
required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
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financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
I communicate with the directors regarding among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 
I also provide the directors with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

 
Independence 

 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants. 

 

Trevor Lane  
FCA Chartered Accountant  
Member Number 16718 
Honorary Auditor 

 
Date 4th July 2022 
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Statement by Principal Officers of the Board 
 

This declaration is made in accordance with the NSW Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the 
Charitable Fundraising Regulations. 
 
The Board of the North Steyne Surf Living Saving Club Inc. (“NSSLSC”) had determined that the club 
is not a reporting entity and that the special purpose financial report should be prepared in 
accordance with accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, the financial report as set out in the preceding pages: 
 
1. Presents a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of NSSLSC as at 31 May 2022 and 

performance for the 13-months ended on that date with respect to fundraising appeals; 
 

2. The provision of the Act, the Regulations under the Act and the conditions attached to the 
fundraising authority have been complied with by NSSLSC; 
 

3. The internal controls exercised by NSSLSC are appropriate and effective in accounting for all 
income received and applied by NSSLSC from its fundraising activities; 
 

4. At the dates of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that NSSLSC will be 
able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable; and 
 

5. The financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 

 
This declaration is made in accordance with sub-section 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and 
Not- for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Christine Gibbs Stewart,  Shannon Job, 
President Treasurer 
 
Dated 4th July 2022 

Statement by Principal Officers of the Board
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Life Members
Keith	 Abraham
Bernard	 Burrows
Jonathan Colwell
Keith	 Crampton
Paul	 Day
Richard Donaldson
Simon	 Fry
Shan	 Grose
Paul	 Hull
Trevor	 Lane
Paul	 Mathew
Arthur	 McCarroll
Ronald	 Morton
Damian	O’Shannassy
Garry	 O’Sullivan
Nicholas Roelvink
Peter	 St John
Colin	 Stanford
John	 Sutherland

Award Members
Lisa Anese
Chris Dooley
Delia Farrell
Scott Farrell
Michael	Jenkins
Geoffrey Kinghorn
Derek	 Minihane
Leslie Wait

Active Reserve
Richard	Donaldson
Hamish	Matheson
Douglas McEwen
Maxine	Peacock-Smith
Malcolm Peake

Past Active
Foord	 Dixie
Riisfeldt	Jack
Peacock-Smith	 Kim

Honorary Members
Hay	 Jean
Taylor	 Andrew

Long Service
Melinda	Akehurst
John	 Anderson
Brian	 Baker
Mark	 Ballesty
Ross	 Birch
Lee	 Chaloner
Peter	 Chapman

Rebecca Chapman
Deborah Foote
Timothy	Fry
Darren	 Gore
Robyn	 Humphrey
Shannon Job
Peter	 Landsey
Gordon	Lang
David	 Maguire
Joe	 Mastrangelo
William	McLerie
Todd	 Moore
Kate	 Munro
Mark	 Neighbour
William	O’Brien
Anthony Purcell
Peter	 Rogers
Rubin	 Ruzicka
Alexandra Salier
Tony	 Saunders
Paul	 Thomson
Adam	 Traugott
Bastien	Wallace

Active Senior
Zachary Alford
Michael	Altenburger
Maya	 Auld
Stephen Basil-Jones
Julia	 Bell
Matthew Benns
Michael	Bernerius
Rebecca Boake
Kai	 Brandson
Roger	 Brant
Jeffrey	 Brown
Mark	 Burns
Chloe	 Butcher
Colleen	Button
Erin	 Colwell
Joanne	Cooper
Ewan	 Cooper-Frater
David	 Cowell
Oscar	 Cowell
Stuart	 Crofton
Antea-Allegra	 Crvelin
Sophie	 Egden
Ella	 Falzarano
Tonino	 Falzarano
Daniel	 Flynn
Jodie	 Frazer
Matthew Gertenbach
Christine Gibbs Stewart
Danny	 Gompes
Luke	 Gordon
Nick	 Greenhalgh
Tom	 Gunton
David	 Guthrie

Mechelle Hare
Piers	 Haskard
James	 Hassell
Chris	 Haughton
David	 Hearn
Kirk	 Henzlik
Simon	 Herfort
Abbey	 Hillier
Daniel	 Hillier
Emma	 Hillier
Jonathan Holman
Matthew Holt
Anthony Howell
Laura	 Ioviero
Kyra	 Jenkins
Llewellyn Jenkins
Mia	 Kasalo
Olivia	 Kehoe
Peta	 Kilgour
Evelyn	 Killick
Sarah	 Kinghorn
Mick	 Kirchner
Sarah	 Lally
Samuel	Leafe
Stephen Leong
Rory	 Macintyre
Mark	 Maddox
Brendan Maher
Bruce	 Mansfield
Brian	 Mariotti
Joanna	McGlashan
Kieran	 Mooney
Andrew	O’Farrell
Freya	 O’Neill
Shane	 O’Neill
Claire Oxlade
Molly	 Parker
Ben	 Parry
Nicholas Perry
Fernando Pinto
Chloe	 Platt
Edward	Platt
Euan	 Ramsey-Stewart
Michael	Rees-Evans
Pip	 Rees-Evans
Michael	Reidy
Frazer	 Richardson
Rose	 Richardson
Matthew Riordan
Dean	 Robinson
Victoria	Robinson
Akari	 Sakauchi
Craig	 Shadbolt
Angela	 Silberberg
Caroline Silberberg
Desmond Silberberg
Kevin	 Silvy
Lou Lou Stanley
Lyndsay Steadman

Mark	 Stewart
Alexandra Stirling
Stephanie Stoddard
Robert	 Szewczak
Riana	 Takeda
Sophie	 Tetley
Niels	 Thelosen
James	 Townsend
Jonathan Townsend
Frans	 Traugott
Analiese Treacy-Ruane
Roisin	 Tumilty
Scott	 Turner
David	 Unicomb
Lachlan	Van der Pluijm
George	Van Dyck
Mark	 Van Dyck
Jessica	Wait
Maxwell Wait
Thomas Wait
Kristie	 Walker
Maya	 Walton
Jack	 Watt
Rob	 Wilde
Dave	 Williams
Gregory Windsham
Gus	 Wong
Kyle	 Wong
Chloe	 Woodward
Scott	 Woodward
Caroline Yarnell

Active 15 – 18 years
Hunter	 Auld
Lachlan	Bennett
Joshua	Birley
Matthew Birley
Andrew	Chatfield
Samuel	Chubb
Emilia	 Cimino
Hanna	 Clare
William	Collins
Ross	 Downey
Evelyn	 Farrell
Sean	 Farrell
Annabel Filmer
Toby	 Griffiths
Thomas Hamer
Isabella	Havryk
Caitlin	 Heffernan
Jack	 Herbert
Peter	 Herbert
Edward	Hillier
Harrison Hogan
Tiana	 Kasalo
Rory	 Kehoe
Rachel	 Kinghorn
Lexie	 Landrak
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Zoe	 Landrak
Ted	 Litchfield
Emma	 Mahon
Pieter	 Marais
Jessica	Marshall
Aaron	 McCloskey
Max	 Miklis
Jodie	 O’Neill
Jessica	O’Reilly
Antonio	Remedios
Maddi	 Schmidt
Natalie	 Silberberg
Phoenix Swann
Sophie	 Tetley
Eliza	 Tompson
Kathryn	Tucker
Jasmine Unicomb
Harley Van der Pluijm
Fraser	 Wait
Cerys	 Walton
Sienna	 Wessels
Liam	 Wheen

Cadets
Cillian	 Barriscale
Matilda	Binns
Larnach  Black
Francesca Brady
Rosie	 Brown
Luka	 Delaney
Marielle	Eslick
Charlotte Faulk
Dylan	 Ford
Geoffrey Herbert
Dara	 Kehoe
Chloe	 Kelly
Andrew	Kinghorn
Zoe	 Maher
Emmett	Mariotti
Joss	 Martin
Greer	 Mason
Charles	Mcewen
Emilie	 Morris
Lukas	 Muller
Kate	 Neville
Alec	 Parren
Casey	 Shea
Xavier	 Small
Eva	 Tompson
Oskar	 Townsin-Brant
Riley	 Wallis
Blake	 Wilson
Emma	 Winter

Associate General 
Scott	 Abbott
Tony	 Albuquerque
Michael	Allen

Andreas Anderhov
Gina	 Anderhov
Sivan	 Atad
Robert	 Atkinson
Daniel	 Badstue
Kyla	 Badstue
Oliver	 Baumann
Keryn	 Bayliss
Iuliia	 Bilonozhko
Phillip	 Bird
Daniel	 Bodin
Chris	 Brown
Chris	 Brown
E Scarlett Brown
Nick	 Buchfinck
Brad	 Burden
Zoe	 Burrell
Georgie	Burrows
Hillary	 Burrows
Da	 Cai
Dominic Catherin
Andrew	Cavill
Keith	 Cawthorne
Sally	 Cawthorne
Daniel	 Cervantes Davalos
Robert	 Chapman
Murray	 Chatfield
James	 Cheng
Geoffrey Cheng
Luke	 Cheng
Valeriya	Churyumova
John	 Clarson
John	 Cole
Paul	 Cole
Amanda Collins
Brad	 Collins
Christine Comerford
Cecily	 Conroy
Lucas	 Conway
Candice Cooper
Janell	 Cowel
Samuel	Cowell
Shane	 Creamer
Matthew Crossley
Louise	 Cummins
Roberto	Davey
Tom	 Davidson
David	 Dekker
Heber	 Delaney
Rita	 Delmar
Emeric	 Dequidt
Holly	 Doran
Fergus	 Duggan
Derrick	 Edwards
Heidi	 Edwards
Jarrod	 Egan
Kelly	 Egan
Sarkis	 Elia
Jeremy	Elliott

Anna	 Ellis
Mark	 Ellis
Enid	 Eslick
Guy	 Eslick
Janice	 Faaolatane
Sarah	 Falzarano
Eliza	 Faulk
David	 Field
Rebecca Fleming
Peter	 Frater
Timothy	Galt
Benoit	 Gaudreault
Dan	 Gibbeson
Lily	 Gibbs
Michael	Goldsworthy
Michael	Golledge
Izabela	Gower
Matthew Gower
John	 Gray
Sossi	 Green
Grace	 Guan
Katrina	 Guthrie
Isabella	Guthrie
Marc	 Hamameh
Catherine Hansen
Ally	 Hawes
Robin	 Herbert
Kate	 Herfort
Brad	 Heskett
Fiona	 Heskett
Cath	 Hillier
Daniel	 Hilson
Annelies Hodge
Ken	 Hoetmer
James	 Holder
Grant	 Home
David	 Howard
Rebecca Huang
Carl John Huber
Penelope Huisman
Kahori	 Inoue
Jessica Yuen Ming Ip
Kathleen Isaacs
Josephine James
Julia	 Jamieson
Michael	Jamieson
Diana	 Jenkins
Judith	 Jenkins
Faye	 Jenner
Trish	 Johnson
Christine Jones
Xanthe	 Jones
Alain	 Junkermann
Christopher Kane
Orla	 Keane
Kevin	 Kehoe
Edward	Kelly
Yvonne	Kelly
Lisa	 Kinghorn

Steve	 Kramer
Nick	 Kulkarni
Arnold	 Kwok
Anushka Lalauze
Eric	 Lalauze
Martin	 Lam
Mark	 Lancaster
Timothy	Laurence
John	 Lee
Bjorn	 Leffler
Monica	Leffler
Angele	 Logtenberg-Verstraelen
Tasman	Lovell
Laurence Macia
Ronan	 Maguire
Aj	 Mahale
Danita	 Maisey
David	 Maisey
Anna	 Manchee
Will	 Manning
Alfredo	 Martinez
Justina	 McClean
Anna	 Mccready
Steve	 McMahon
Andre	 Migliari
Tom	 Monk
Sophie	 Moran
Timothy	Moran
Hannah	Morgan
Matthew Morgan
Jeff	 Morris
Chris	 Mulham
Jill	 Munt
Andrew	Murphy
Wayne	 Neville
Sharmila Normington
Samantha O’Brien
Maja	 Paleka
Mike	 Parker-Brown
Nicola	 Parren
Shaun	 Parren
Andy	 Paterson
Andrew	Paul
Alastair	Pennie
Olivia	 Pennie
Roberta	Peres
Dianne	 Phillips
Patrick	 Phillips
Donna	 Pinto
Jasper	 Poos
David	 Port
Steve	 Porter
Neasa	 Power
Sarina	 Ramjahn
Gareth	 Ratcliffe
Karen	 Ratcliffe
Claire	 Reed
Simon	 Reid
Myra	 Reid
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Ali Richardson
Cameron Richardson
Sophie	 Richardson
Matthew Riddell
Hailey	 Rivera
Ben Roberts-Thomson
Francesca Roberts-Thomson
Dermot	Ruane
Dylan	 Ryan
Belinda	Sanderson
Pamela	Scarborough
Robin	 Scarborough
Damian	Scattini
Monique Scattini
Amardeep Seyan
Craig	 Shortus
Pauline	Shuttleworth
Robb	 Simpson
Greg	 Smart
Karen	 Smith
Michael	Smith
Emmanouil Spanos
Chris	 Spresser
Priscilla	Spresser
Lee	 Steadman
Marije	 Stegeman
Belinda	Stenstrom
Van	 Stewart
Mia	 Stewart
Hansen	Stig
Ranjeeta Tamang Mahale
Evan	 Tancred
Meha	 Thind
Ben	 Thomas
Benjamin Thomas
Chris	 Tipper
Simon	 Totterdell
Alison	 Totterdell
Natalie	 Turner
Regina	 Ugarte Rocha
Karen	 Ure
Roger	 van de Zande
Dom	 Velcic
Samantha Velcic
Tamara	Vise
Matthew Walker
Amie	 Wallis
Kieran	 Wallis
Shani	 Walton
Stephen Walton
David	 Watkins
Emily Watkins
Samuel Watkins	
Andrew	Watt
Lynn	 Westacott
Geoff	 Williams
Olive	 Williams
Sam	 Willis
Tracey	 Willis
Kellie	 Willson

Kirsty	 Wilson
Anthony Wong
David	 Wooder
Linda	 Wortel
Jennifer	Wyndham-Wheeler
Yuan	 Zhou
	
	
Nippers U6
Idris	 Aboushabana
Ila	 Baumann
Emily	 Cawthorne
Mila	 Cervantes Ugarte
Estelle	 Clarson
Thomas Cooper
Chloe	 Egan
Imogen	Ellis
Lily	 Field
Anika	 Gower
Jack	 Heskett
Lachlan	Hoetmer
Holly	 Holt
Wiliam	 Jamieson
Coralie	 Kane
Samson Mckenzie
Freddie	Paterson
Flynn	 Ruane
James	 Scattini
Olivia	 Spresser
Freya	 Thomas
Isabelle	Tipper
Heidi	 Totterdell
Odette	 Totterdell
Darcy	 Willis

Nippers U7
Jai	 Baron
William	Bourke
Beau	 Brown
Diane	 Buchfinck
Mac	 Burden
Olivia	 Cai
Sonny	 Cheng
Arlo	 Cole
Olive	 Conway
Lea	 Creamer
Boris	 Cvetanovski
Marlow	Davey
Etta	 Douglas-Hill
Sophia	 Duggan
Claudia	Edwards
Ava	 Elia
Blake	 Golledge
Elijah	 Hansen
Levi	 Hansen
Scarlett	Hawes
Sam	 Herfort
Gwenyth Heskett
Eva	 Hilson
Bowie	 Howell

Oliver J	Huber
Peter	 James
Atticus	 Jenkins
Finley	 Knight-Cheng
Mali	 Lalauze
Imogen	Lam
Aimee	 Logtenberg
Juliana	 Manning
Evelina	Monk
Florence Morgan
Thomas Mulham
Sean	 Omondi
Sara	 Pinto
Delilah	 Port
Innes	 Reid
Rufus	 Riddell
Freddie	Roberts-Thomson
Eloise	 Ryan
Daniel	 Smart
Harry	 Smith
Charlotte Wilson-Burden

Nippers U8
Nava	 Asil
Nik	 Asil
Emily	 Burrell-West
Frankie	Butcher
Miles	 Cavill
Pamela Cedeno Stewart
Pascal	 Chapman
Hugo	 Collins
Beatrice Crossley
Heidi	 Doyle
Isabel	 Egan
Mark	 Fleming
Nina	 Gower
Max	 Grishin
Saskia	 Howell
Stephanie Jamieson
Ivy-Rose Johnson
Victoria	Kirchner
Fredrik	 Leffler
William	Lovell
Riley	 Lyons
Riley	 Maisey
Elizabeth Manchee
Roxy	 Mcilvain
Patrick	 McMahon
Sacha	 Millaire
Lincoln Rose Normington
Flynn	 Peake
Zoey	 Poos
Oliver	 Porter
Carter	 Richardson
Milan	 Rivera
Freya	 Sanderson
Uma	 Scarborough
Suhavi	 Seyan
Freya	 Shadbolt

Scout	 Simpson
Paige	 Steadman
Angus	 Willis
Sam	 Willis
Ella	 Wilson
Leo	 Wooder
Sophia	 Zhang

Nippers U9
Jack	 Abbott
Zack	 Anderhov
Emelie	 Atad
Freja	 Badstue
Miles	 Barriscale
Mia	 Baumann
Kseniya	Bilonozhko
Jamie	 Brown
Marlow	Brown
Travis	 Cai
Amelie	 Catherin
Eduardo Cervantes Ugarte
Ernst	 Dekker
Amandine Dequidt
Roscoe	Douglas-Hill
Leo	 Ellis
Eloise	 Eslick
Tobias	 Fussi
Louis	 Gibbeson
Ethan	 Goldsworthy
Lily	 Green
Zachary Hansen
Charlie	 Herfort
Eilidh	 Home
Arcadia	Jones
Matilda	Kane
Charlie	 Kramer
Eva	 Kulkarni
Louis	 Lalauze
Lola	 Macia-Hamameh
Bernardo Migliari
Seren	 Morgan
Matilda	Munt
Kiana	 O’Farrell
Dylan	 Paterson
Flori	 Pennie
Matteo	 Peres Albuquerque
Edward	Reed
Jamison Ryan
Erina	 Sakauchi
Myka	 Totterdell
Jonah	 Walker
Aaron	 Wooder

Nippers U10
Addison Burrows
Sophie	 Cawthorne
Daniel	 Chatfied
Josephine Clarson
Samuel	Cole
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Joel	 Colwell
Millicent Crofton
Lachlan	Cummins
Elias	 Elia
Oscar	 Elliott
Camilla	Ellis
Samuel	Galt
Philippa	Gates
Max	 Howard
Ella	 Isaacs
Tristan	 Junkermann Greenwood
Hayato	 Kanezaki
Kyra	 Kirchner
Zoe	 Lancaster
Jacob	 Lee
Michael	Leffler
Tom	 Mcilvain
Elsie	 Moran
Olivia	 Murphy
Max	 Newton
Noah	 Parker
Ruby	 Phillips
Sammy	Pim
Aria	 Pinto
Evie	 Port
Morgan	Pritchard
David	 Robinson
Joel	 Robinson
Cillian	 Ruane
Amelie	 Ryan
Orson	 Scarborough
Helena	 Stenstrom
James	 Velcic
Leon	 Walsh
Luke	 Willis
Zoe	 Willis
Joshua	Wortel

Nippers U11
Noah	 Aboushabana Shelly
Mia	 Allen
Zoe	 Anderhov
Caden	 Badstue
Pearl	 Brown
Clem	 Buchfinck
Indi	 Butcher
Harvey	 Collins
Charlie	 Conroy
Sofia	 Delmar
Cassandre Dequidt
Mia	 Falzarano
Zach	 Gibbeson
Sasha	 Grishin
Amelie	 Guthrie
Mia	 Haughton
Inigo	 Jenkins
Charlie	 Kehoe
Emily	 Kelly
Emma	 Kramer
Michael	Love

Ciara	 Lovell
Ciara	 Maguire
Ahaana	Mahale
Amairah Mahale
Harper	 Maisey
Leonel	 Martinez
Naomi	 Paul
Valentina Peres Albuquerque
Luca	 Pinto
Darcey	 Reed
Max	 Steadman
Felix	 Stephens
Albie	 Watt
Emilia	 Watts-Russell

Nippers U12
William	Atkinson
Ryan	 Brown
Kody	 Burrows
Thomas Crofton
Thomas Dalton
Max	 Delaney
Isaac	 Eslick
Lucy	 Galt
Georgia	Gray
Allen	 James
Andre	 Kwok
Manon	 Macia-Hamameh
Sophie	 Maher
Victoria	Manchee
Emily	 Murphy
Gemma	O’Farrell
Sienna	 Omondi
Rory	 Pennie
Kal	 Reid
Larissa	Shortus
Saskia	 Shortus
Lucas	 Silver
Nicholas Smart
Amelie	 Spanos
Sophia	 Spanos
Lukas	 Townsin-Brant
Daniel	 Velcic
Aiden	 Wallis
Ava	 Willis
Chenyang Zhang

Nippers U13
Hugh	 Barriscale
Isabel	 Churchman
Charlie	 Colwell
Cameron Davidson
Olivka	 Gates
Leo	 Gibbeson
Eva	 Haughton
Chloe	 Howard
Zara	 Isaacs
Abigail	 Kelly
Oisin	 Morris
Charlotte Robinson

Joshua	Robinson
Beanon	Ruane
Neo	 Siu
Charles	Stenstrom
Brigid	 Tompson
Josh	 Turner
Harper	 Vallelonga
Charlotte Walker
Connor	Wallis

Nippers U14
Freddie	Brown
Oliver	 Crofton
Jai	 Delaney
Monet	 Delmar
Capucine Dequidt
Samantha Dutton
Alice	 Galt
Charlie	 Gordon
Olivia	 Halloway
Sophie	 Hamer
Sienna	 Hogan
Mabel	 James
Dara	 Kehoe
Chloe	 Kelly
Isaac	 Lee
Natasha Martinez
Sophie	 Paddison
Kaea	 Phillips
Daisy	 Ratcliffe
Taylor	 Roberts
Daniel	 Unicomb
Harry	 Wilde
Brendan Williams



List of Executives 1907 - 1956

Season President Secretary Treasurer Captain Chief Instructor

07-08 R Arthur MLA WH Commins WJ Bland CD Patterson GH Williams

08-09 R Arthur MLA SAE Wigney WG Fisher CD Patterson HD Spyer
09-10 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell HF Watson CD Patterson A Neale
10-11 EW Quirk EMV Shemwell KV Holmes CD Patterson OGH Merrett
11-12 CD Patterson EMV Shemwell KV Holmes OGH Merrett
12-13 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett
13-14 CD Patterson JB Pym KV Holmes OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
14-15 EMV Shemwell HH Donkin RN Beale OGH Merrett OGH Merrett
15-16 Col DH Love EH Goulding N Thomson OGH Merrett
16-17 Col DH Love EH Goulding JW Roberts OGH Merrett
17-18 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts OGH Merrett JJ Waterer
18-19 Col DH Love WH Walker JW Roberts LV Hind JJ Waterer
19-20 Col DH Love RC Middleton RJ Hall LV Hind JJ Waterer
20-21 Col DH Love RC Middleton JJ Waterer LV Hind
21-22 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
22-23 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead EM Whitehead
23-24 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
24-25 Col DH Love LA Ellison JJ Waterer CW Whitehead FH Dargan
25-26 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
26-27 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
27-28 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer ED Morton FH Dargan
28-29 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
29-30 WH Allison LA Ellison JJ Waterer G Bland FH Dargan
30-31 WH Allison AH Owen AC Ellison CW Whitehead GR Webb
31-32 CW Whitehead AH Owen AC Ellison GL Bolton EW Whitehead
32-33 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie GL Bolton NB Bland
33-34 CW Whitehead AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
34-35 FH Dargan AV Robison VH Christie DG Soutar SG Berthold
35-36 FH Dargan AV Robison GR Soutar DG Soutar SG Berthold
36-37 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DG Soutar SG Berthold
37-38 FH Dargan AV Robison HM Richards DH Richardson WS Green
38-39 DG Soutar SAR Tuck SJ Law DH Richardson RN Crook
39-40 DG Soutar DK Robinson W Brown DH Richardson RN Crook
40-41 DG Soutar AV Robison R Kennington JR Greary G Hatten
41-42 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JR Geary G Hatten
42-43 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck JL Jenkins WS Green
43-44 RJ Walden DJ McGrath SAR Tuck AE Fitzgerald WS Green
44-45 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald WS Green
45-46 RJ Walden JS Gibbons GR Soutar AE Fitzgerald G Kemp
46-47 JR Geary JS Gibbons NW Higham B McLoughlan FO Baker
47-48 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan FO Baker/G Terry
48-49 JR Geary CK Paton NW Higham EG Morgan G Terry
49-50 JR Geary CK Paton WC Davidson EG Morgan G Terry
50-51 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell O Willis
51-52 RN Crook CK Paton R Kennington N Purcell G Terry
52-53 JR Geary WA Furey H Rodgers R Ferris G Terry
53-54 JR Geary SG Robinson H Rodgers A Fitzgerald B Terry
54-55 SG Robsinson R Woodley J Allen A Fitzgerald J McCabe
55-56 AE Fitzgerald NR Purcell DT Dunton G McConnell R Tighe
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56-57 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G McConnell G Terry
57-58 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry J Wilson
58-59 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington G Terry C Anderson
59-60 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
60-61 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
61-62 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Kennington J Sutherland M Goodfellow
62-63 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow

63-64 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland H Rodgers J Sutherland M Goodfellow
64-65 AE Fitzgerald W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
65-66 S Tocchini W Sutherland P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow
66-67 S Tocchini/ W Sutherland/P Day J Sutherland M Goodfellow W Sutherland/ 

A Kwanton
67-68 NW Kelley G Kinging P Day K Day W Miles
68-69 J Sutherland G Kinging P Day K Day M Goodfellow
69-70 M Goodfellow G Kinging P Day C Barrow T Hanley
70-71 PA Day G Kinging D Ramsland R Higgins A Richardson

71-72 PA Day D Ramsland P Barnes M Simmons N Daniels
72-73 PA Day W Miles T Lane M Simmons N Daniels
73-74 PA Day W Miles/P Day T Lane M Simmons
74-75 PA Day M Turner D Kaye P McFadyen A McCarroll
75-76 PA Day M Turner/P Day A Shaw A McCarroll A McCarroll
76-77 PA Day T Glenn A Shaw A McCarroll M Turner
77-78 A McCarroll M Turner N Hunt C Fry T O’Donnell
78-79 A McCarroll R Buit N Hunt C Fry J Killick
79-80 A McCarroll M Pryke P Furnel/ 

M Gamlin
D Gordon J Killick

80-81 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin D Gordon J Killick
81-82 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker D Gordon
82-83 A McCarroll F Ashworth M Gamlin B Walker/J Killick D Gordon
83-84 A McCarroll G Evans P Nass B Burrows D Gordon
84-85 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan
85-86 A McCarroll R Ingram P Nass B Burrows G O’Sullivan/ 

D Gordon
86-87 A McCarroll C Coape-Smith/ 

R Fountain
G Evans P Duggan J Killick

87-88 A McCarroll R Fountain G Evans/ 
D Kaye

P Hull D Gordon

88-89 A McCarroll / B Walker T Miller D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
89-90 B Walker T O’Donnell D Kaye D O’Shannassy P Hull
90-91 B Walker B Burrows D Kaye G O’Sullivan P Hull
91-92 B Walker/B Burrows B Burrows/I Donald A McCarroll G O’Sullivan / P 

Hull
92-93 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
93-94 B Burrows I Donald A McCarroll C Tyrrell P Hull
94-95 B Burrows I Donald T Moore S Fry P Hull
95-96 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
96-97 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
97-98 B Burrows D O’Shannassy M Murphy P Hull I Donald
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98-99 D O’Shannassy J Killick/D O’Shannassy T Howard J Colwell  G O’Sullivan

99-00 S Grose T Prendergast T Howard J Colwell /G 
O’Sullivan

D O’Shannassy

00-01 I Byrne D O’Shannassy T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
01-02 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Vickery G O’Sullivan
02-03 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard H Matheson G O’Sullivan
03-04 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Latta G O’Sullivan
04-05 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson
05-06 S Grose KE Abraham T Howard J Colwell H Matheson
06-07 S A Fry KE Abraham G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott
07-08 SA Fry L Cooper G Cooper J Colwell A Traugott/  

KE Abraham
08-09 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham
09-10 D O’Shannassy L Cooper G Cooper S Job KE Abraham
10-11 D O’Shannassy T Hare-Boyd G Cooper S Job F Traugott
11-12 G O’Sullivan L Cooper K Martin T Rankine F Traugott
12-13 G O’Sullivan L Cooper G Cooper T Rankine T Hare-Boyd
13-14 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper P Woolcott T Rankine R Chapman
14-15 T Hare-Boyd L Cooper G Cooper R Chapman F Traugott
15-16 F Traugott C Stewart K Ryder R Chapman J Greer
16-17 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano R Chapman K Jenkins
17-18 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins
18-19 F Traugott C Stewart T Falzarano D Hillier K Jenkins
19-20 C Stewart C Hillier T Falzarano D Hillier Trae Hare-Boyd
20-21 C Stewart F Traugott T Falzarano D Hillier Trae Hare-Boyd
21-22 C Stewart F Traugott G Van Dyck / S Job J Watt D Hillier

List of Executives 1998 - 2022

Thank you to all contributors to the photos within this annual report. 

Special mention to David Sawyer , Darryl Bullock, Emma Hillier, 
Ally Stirling, Cath Hillier, Sarah Lally, Chris Stewart, Claire Oxlade,

and Nipper parents 

Cover photo courtesy of Greg Cole www.gregacole.com  
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